ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
701 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA 94501

IF YOU WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD:

1. Please file a speaker’s slip with the Executive Director, and upon recognition by
the President, approach the rostrum and state your name; speakers are limited
to 5 minutes per item.

2. If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Board of
Directors of Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation, please contact Stacey
Wilson at (510) 747-4307 (TTY/TRS: 711) or swilson@alamedahsg.org.
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Alameda Affordable
Housing Corporation Board of Directors to make reasonable arrangements to
ensure accessibility.

AGENDA ANNUAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE & TIME Wednesday, June 19, 2019 — 7:01 PM

LOCATION Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA

Public Participation
Anyone wishing to address the Board on agenda items or business introduced by Directors
may speak for a maximum of five minutes per agenda item when the subject is before the
Board. Please file a speaker’s slip with the Executive Director if you wish to address the
Board of Directors.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
1. ROLL CALL - Board of Directors
2. Public Comment (Non-Agenda)

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted by one
motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the Board
of Directors or a member of the public.

3-A. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors held June 20, 2018,
page 1
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AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
June 19, 2019

4, AGENDA
4-A. Accept Memo Regarding the Reconciliation of AAHC Property Purchases, page 4

4-B. Accept Audited Financial Statements for the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Showing AAHC'’s Financials as a Blended Component Unit and IRS Form 990, page 7

4-C. Revise the Regular Meeting Schedule, page 80
4-D. Approve the FY2019-2020 Budget, page 81

5. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment)

6. DIRECTORS COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Directors)

7. ADJOURNMENT OF ANNUAL MEETING

* % %

Note

If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Board of Directors of
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation, please contact Stacey Wilson at (510) 747-4307
(TTY/TRS: 711) or swilson@alamedahsqg.org. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will
enable the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation Board of Directors to make reasonable
arrangements to ensure accessibility.

Documents related to this agenda are available for public inspection and copying at the
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation office, 701 Atlantic Avenue, during normal business
hours.

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to serve the
public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. The Board of Directors exists to
conduct the business of its constituents. Deliberations are conducted before the people and
are open for the people’s review.

In order to assist the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation’s efforts to accommodate
persons with severe allergies, environmental ilinesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related
disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive
to various chemical based products. Please help the Alameda Affordable Housing
Corporation accommodate these individuals.



ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORTION
701 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA 94501

DRAFT MINUTES

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation
June 20, 2018

The Board of Directors Meeting was called to order at 8:23 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1.

ROLL CALL -

Present: Art Kurrasch, John McCahan, Brad Weinberg, Kenji Tamaoki, Stuart
Rickard.

Absent: Fayleen Allen, Sandra Kay

Staff Officers Present: Vanessa Cooper, Joyce Boyd, Lisa Caldwell

Public Comment (Non-Agenda)

None.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted by
one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from
the Board of Directors or a member of the public.

Approve Minutes of the Reqular Meeting of the Board of Directors held February 21,
2018

Director Kurrasch moved to approve the consent calendar items and Director Weinberg
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

AGENDA

Adopt FYE 2019 Annual Budget, page 6

Director Kurrasch moved to adopt the FYE 2019 Annual Budget and Director Weinberg
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.
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Meeting of the Board of Directors, June 20, 2018 Page 2

5. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment)

None.

6. DIRECTORS COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Directors)

None.

1. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING
There being no further business, the President adjourned the meeting at 8:28 p.m.
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Meeting of the Board of Directors, June 20, 2018 Page 3

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, Vanessa Cooper, hereby certify that | am the duly elected, qualified Secretary of Alameda
Affordable Housing Corporation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, organized
and existing under the laws of the State of California, and the foregoing minutes are true, full
and correct copy of the minutes of the first meeting of the Board of Directors of said
Corporation held on this June 20, 2018.

Dated:

Vanessa Cooper,
Secretary
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ITEM 4A

ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

To: Board of Directors

From: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director

Prepared by: Kathleen Mertz, Director of Housing and Community Development

Date: June 19, 2019

Re: Accept Memo Regarding the Reconciliation of AAHC Property
Purchases

BACKGROUND

On October 18, 2017, the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City
of Alameda (AHA) authorized the Executive Director to create a new, wholly controlled,
nonprofit entity that will serve as owner of certain Housing Authority properties in order
to comply with HUD’s contracting requirements. Staff and legal counsel filed formation
documents with the California Secretary of State for Alameda Affordable Housing
Corporation (AAHC) on November 1, 2107. AAHC received a determination of tax
exempt status from the Internal Revenue Services. The AHA Board of Commissioners
are also seated as the Board of Directors of AAHC. For audit purposes, these two
entities are designated as blended components and their financials are presented as
combined. In February 2018, the Board passed Resolution 2018-01 authorizing the
transfer of four properties (Anne B. Diament, China Clipper Plaza, Lincoln-Willow
Apartments, and Stanford House) to AAHC, including soft financing for the as-is value
of the improvements and the capitalization of replacement reserves for these properties
in the amount of $1,000 per unit. The transfer was completed on May 1, 2018.

DISCUSSION

This memo was prepared in an effort to reconcile and memorialize all of the various
details of this transaction as it relates to the two parties, AHA and AAHC. Additional
transaction details are identified in the February 21, 2018 Board report and authorizing
resolution referenced earlier. For all four of the properties mentioned above, the
following details apply:

1. AHA retains ownership of the land through a Ground Lease.

2. AAHC owns only the building improvements, per the appraisal. AHA financed the
acquisition of the improvements through a residual receipts seller note, the
amounts of which are detailed in the following chart.
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AAHC Board of Directors June 19, 2019

Page 2 of 3
Property Address Improvements
Value/Seller Loan

China Clipper Plaza 460 Buena Vista Ave $3,400,000
Anne B Diament 920 Park St $8,130,000
Lincoln-Willow 2101-03 Lincoln Ave and 1602 Willow St $735,000
Stanford House 1917 Stanford St $860,000

3. The improvements valuation included as-is condition, but shared assets (e.g.

4.

© N o

vehicles) and AHA equipment (e.g. computers) were not transferred to AAHC.
AAHC has applied for a welfare tax exemption because it will be subject to
property taxes for the possessory interest of the improvements value.

Existing tenant leases were assigned to AAHC.

Tenant security deposits were transferred to AAHC, per state law.

AAHC has its own bank accounts for operations and reserves.

$1,000 per unit in Replacement Reserves were transferred to AAHC. This totaled
$100,000 for the four properties combined, per the chart below.

Property Replacement Reserves
China Clipper Plaza $26,000

Anne B Diament $65,000

Lincoln-Willow $5,000

Stanford House $4,000

TOTAL $100,000

AHA capitalized 3 months of operating costs for AAHC to be sure that it could
pay its bills at initial transfer while rent checks were collected by AAHC. These
start-up funds will be paid back in full by June 30, 2019 (Anne B. Diament
$162,469, China Clipper Plaza $79,241, Lincoln Willow $11,090, and Stanford
House $12,857).

10.AHA paid all costs, title and escrow fees, at the time of transfer. The costs

associated with all four properties totaled $23,220. A delinquent tax payment
from 1997 was paid for Lincoln Willow ($7,742) and a refund request is being
processed with the Alameda County tax collector because it was a hold over that
should have been paid by the seller at the time AHA acquired the property. A
settlement statement was issued by the title company to memorialize each
transaction.

11.Property and General Liability Insurance is covered under the AHA’s existing

policy, per detailed discussions with the carrier (HARRP). Directors and Officers
coverage for AAHC is also covered under the existing AHA policy. AAHC does
not have a separate policy.

12. AAHC executed a Property and Asset Management Agreement with AHA to

manage the properties.

13. AAHC has no staff so employment benefits and liabilities remain with AHA.
14.AAHC passes Resolution 2017-01 establishing the use of AHA’s policies and

procedures where none exist for AAHC.
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AAHC Board of Directors June 19, 2019
Page 3 of 3

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

RECOMMENDATION

Accept Memo Regarding the Reconciliation of AAHC Property Purchases.

Respectfully submitted,

, M v
Vanes aM ooper

Execut ve Director
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ITEM 4B

ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

To: Board of Directors

From: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director

Prepared by: Kathleen Mertz, Director of Housing and Community Development
Date: June 19, 2019

Re: Accept Audited Financial Statements for the Housing Authority of

the City of Alameda Showing AAHC’s Financials as a Blended
Component Unit

BACKGROUND

Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC) was formed as a supporting
corporation of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA). It is wholly controlled
by AHA and exists as a title holding company for four properties. For audit purposes,
these two entities are designated as blended components and their financials are
presented as combined. AAHC does not have separate financial statements. The
Board of Directors of AAHC is comprised of the Board of Commissioners of AHA.

DISCUSSION

The financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2018, were prepared in the format prescribed by the requirements
of Government Accounting Standards Board Statement 34 (GASB 34).

The firm of Citrin Cooperman & Company LLP, produced the audited financial
statements of the Housing Authority for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. This
incorporates the audited statements for Island City Development (ICD), which is
presented as a discrete component. AHA’s nonprofit affiliate, the Alameda Affordable
Housing Corporation (AAHC), is a blended component with AHA and is not presented
separately. The audit was presented in draft form by audit partner J. Michael Stephens
for the AHA Board of Commissioners review at the March 20, 2019 regular meeting. It
was accepted in final form by the AHA Board of Commissioners on April 17, 2019.

The auditors, Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP, opined that the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Housing Authority of
the City of Alameda as of June 30, 2018. The respective changes in financial position
and cash flows for the year ended are in conformity with accounting principles generally
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AAHC Board of Directors June 19, 2019
Page 2 of 2

accepted (GAAP) in the United States of America.

There was one finding in the report that related to complex journal entries being entered
incorrectly. The management response includes (1) changes in personnel, (2)
implementation of an automated journal entry approval system in Yardi which will
prevent staff from entering journal entries above certain thresholds without review, (3) a
new year end close system, and (4) additional training and coordination with the other
departments.

FISCAL IMPACT

For information only.

RECOMMENDATION

Accept Audited Financial Statements for the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
showing AAHC's financials as a blended component unit.

Respectfully submitted,
. A
/ /
'/:‘/1(/{\)/( l}\T ’/ i
Vanessa M. Cooper |/
Executive Director

Exhibit A: Audited Financial Statements
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Accountants and Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Alameda, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, and the fiduciary fund of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
(the "Authority"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Authoriry's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of Island City Development, which represent 100 percent of the assets,
net position, and revenues of the discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for Island City Development, is based solely on the report of the other
auditors. We did not audit the OPEB Trust Fund, which represent 100 percent of the assets, net
position, and revenues of the fiduciary fund. These financial statements were audited by other auditors
whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for the OPEB Trust, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

CITRIN COOPERMAN & COMPANY, LLP
2 BETHESDA METRO CENTER, 117TH FLOOR BETHESDA, MD 20814 | TEL 301.654.9000 | FAX 301.656.3056
AN INDEPENDENT FIRM ASSOCIATED WITH MOORE STEFHENS
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Accountants and Advisors

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we exptress no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present faitly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, and the fiduciary fund of the Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial positon

and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on page 4 through 10, and the pension and OPEB schedules on
pages 50 through 53 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards on page 64 is required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
accompanying financial data schedule on pages 55 through 59 is required by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

(R]
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The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the Financial Data Schedule are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the undetlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the undetlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America by us and the other auditors. In out opinion, the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards and the Financial Data Schedule are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Anditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 29, 2019
on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That repott is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Gorernment Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Bethesda, Maryland
March 29, 2019
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2018

This section of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda’s (the "Authority") annual financial
report presents a discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we furnished in our presentation to the Board of Commissioners.

The following management discussion and analysis (MD&A) will discuss the results of the Authority’s
operations. Key financial information for the current fiscal year will be compared with those of the

prior year.

Financial Highlights

The assets and deferred outflows of the Authority exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows at the close of fiscal year 2018 resulting in a Net Position of $65,831,910 at June 30,
2018, as opposed to $64,073,928 at June 30, 2017.

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources at June 30, 2018, were $103,479,223. Of this,
$32,488,507 tepresents curtent assets, $68,481,184 represents non-cutrent assets, and
$2,509,532 represents deferred outflows of resources. Total assets and deferred outflows of
resources at June 30, 2017, were $101,103,917.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2018, decreased by $383,879 from
$40,793,553 at June 30, 2017 to $40,409,674 at June 30, 2018. Capital assets are reflected at
cost, less accumulated depreciation for all purchased capital assets.

Total liabilides and deferred inflows of resources at June 30, 2018, were $37,647,313. Of
this, $3,293,715 represents current liabilities, $31,846,279 represents non-current liabilites,
and $2,507,319 represents deferred inflows of resources. Net position increased from
$64,073,928 at June 30, 2017, to $65,831,910 at June 30, 2018, an increase of $1,757,982.

Total revenues for the Authority for fiscal year 2018 were $47,263,968 versus $49,587,426
for fiscal year 2017; a decrease of $2,323,458. The primary sources of revenue for 2018 were
governmental grants including Housing Choice Voucher Program (Section 8) Housing
Assistance Payment (HAP), and rents collected from the Authority’s owned units.

Total expenses for the Authority for fiscal year 2018 were §44,004,175 versus §41,277,811
for fiscal year 2017; an increase of $2,726,364. The major program expenditure, as reflected
on the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, was for
Housing Assistance Payments. There was $29,612,706 of Housing Assistance Payment
expenses for fiscal year 2018. This represents an increase of $3,040,249 of the $26,572,457
amount for fiscal year 2017. The increase is due to additional funds provided by the United
States Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") to meet new Project
Based Vouchers at two new properties and to address a shortfall in HAP as rents for existing

vouchers increased over the year.

Operating revenues for the Authority for fiscal year 2018 were $46,830,312 and operating
expenses were $42,790,802. Operating revenues and expenses for fiscal year 2017 were
$§41,424,076 and $40,187,716 respectively.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2018

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic financial
statements, which are comprised of a statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position, statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information of the Authority as a whole, net of inter-
progtam activity.

The statement of et position presents information on the Authority’s assets and deferred outflows, and
liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of revennes, expenses, and changes in net position presents informadon showing how the
Authority’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are
repotted as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The statenent of cash flows presents the change in the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents during the
most recent fiscal year.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Authority uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Some programs are required to be
established by HUD. However, the Authority also administers other programs to help it control and
manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using
grants and other moneys. All of the funds of the Authority are classified on the face of the financial

statements as one enterprise housing fund as a result of Government Accounting Standards Board
("GASB™) Statement No. 34.

Enterprise funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the
determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration. They are reported
using the full accrual method of accounting in which all assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the statement of net position. The focus of enterprise funds is
on income measurement, which together with the maintenance of equity, is an important financial
indication.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes fo the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the fund financial statements.

n
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2018

Component Unit

As is more fully described in Note 1.A., the government-wide financial statements includes the financial
information of Island City Development (a California Nonprofit Corporation), a discrete component
unit of the Authority. A complete audited financial statement is separately issued for Island City
Development and its subsidiary limited partnerships and limited liability companies, and may be
obtained at the Authority's administrative offices located at 701 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, California.
In fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the Authority created a new blended component unit, Alameda
Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC). The financial statements for AAHC are not presented
separately.

Supplementary Information

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, the pension and OPEB schedules, and the Financial
Data Schedule are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the GASB Statements,
the Uniform Guidance at 2 CFR 200 Subpart F, and the requirements of the HUD. These schedules
can be found in the Supplementary Information sections of this report.

Financial Analysis

The Authority uses funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes. A portion of
the Authority’s net position reflects the investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings and
improvements, furniture, equipment and machinery), net of any debt incurred to finance the acquisidon
of those assets. The Authority uses these capital assets to provide services to clients; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending.

Budgetary Highlights

An agency-wide budget was prepared for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The budget was primarily
used as a management tool. Budgets are prepared in accordance with the accounting procedures
prescribed by the applicable funding agency and revised during the year as appropriate.

Page 16 of 85



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

JUNE 30, 2018

Comparative Statement of Net Position

The following table reflects the statement of net position at June 30, 2018, compated to the prior fiscal
year. The June 30, 2017 net position does not reflect the cumulative change in accounting principle, as
further detailed in Note 13, related to the adoption of certain new GASB standards in fiscal year 2018.
The Authority is engaged only in business-type activities.

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Comparative Statement of Net Position

Current assets

Notes receivable

Capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Deferred outtlow of resources

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred intlow of resources
Net investment of capital assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 June 30,2017 $ Variance % Variance
§ 32,488,507 § 27,730,611 § 4,757,896 14.64 %
28,071,510 29,036,034 (964,524) (3.44)%
40.409.674 40,793,553 (383.879) (0.95)%
100,969,691 97,560,198 3409493 3.38 %
2.509.532 3.543.719 (1.034.187) (41.21)%
3,293.715 3,153,797 (139,918) (4.25)%
31.846.279 32572414 726,135 2.28 %
35139994 35726211 (586,217) (1.67)%
2,507,319 1,303,778 (1.203,541) 48.00 %
13,595,106 13,154,931 440,175 3.24 %
1,059,609 1,111,713 (52,104) (4.92)%
81177195 49.807.284 1.369911 2.68 %
65831910 §_ 64073928 §__ 1757982 2.67 %
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2018

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The following table presents the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, compared to the prior fiscal year. The prior year net position does not
reflect the change in accounting ptinciple. See Note 13 for more information.

Housing Authority of the City Alameda
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2018

June 30,
June 30, 2018 2017 $ Variance % Variance
Operating revenues:
Grants $ 38,819,160 $ 36,418954§ 2,400,206 6.59 %
Rents 3,957,598 3,598,210 359,388 9.99 %
Others 4,053,554 1,406,912 2,646,642 188.12 %
Non-operating revenues:
Interest income 427,034 164,841 262,193 159.06 %
Gain on sale of fixed assets 6,622 6,569 53 0.81 %
Pension gain (Note 6) - 981,940 (981,940) (100.00)%
Del Monte Senior Housing - 7,010,000 (7,010,000) (100.00)%
Total revenues 47.263.968 49.587.426 (2.323.458) (4.69%
Operating expenses:
Administration 7,168,854 6,858,729 310,125 4.52 %
Utlities 1,251,579 679,694 571,885 84.14 %
Maintenance 2,130,543 2,859,549 (729,006) (25.49)%
Protective services 210,000 1,284,379 (1,074,379) (83.65)%
General 331,735 253,244 78,491 30.99 %
Tenant services 573,801 210,000 363,801 173.24 %
Housing assistance payments 29,612,706 26,572,457 3,040,249 11.44 %
Depreciation 1,511,584 1,469,664 41,920 2.85%
Non-operating expenses:
Interest expense 1,184,230 1,090,095 94,135 8.64 %
Extraordinary maintenance 29.143 - 29143 100.00 %o
Total expenses 44004175 41277811 2726364 6.60 %o
Change in net position 3259793 8.309.615 (5.049.822) (60.77)%
Net position, beginning - as
previously reported 64,073,928 55,764,313 8,309,615 14.90 %
Change in accounting principle (1,501.811) - (1,501.811) 100.00 %
Net position, beginning - as
adjusted 62572117 55.764.313 6,807,804 12.21 %
Net position, ending 65831910 $__ 64073928 §__1.757.982 2.74 %
8
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2018

Analysis of the Authority’s Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations

As indicated in the above comparative statements, the Authority’s net position at June 30, 2018
increased by $1,757,982 from the June 30, 2017 balance.

Changes in Capital Assets

The following presents the changes in fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation) at June 30, 2018,
versus the prior fiscal year.

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Changes in Capital Assets
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

June 30, 2018
June 30,2018 June 30, 2017 $ Variance % Variance
Land § 22022054 § 22022054 § - - %
Construction in progress 8,718 286,032 (277,314) (96.95)%
Buildings and improvements 44,826,293 43 421,275 1,405,018 324 %
Equipment 367.025 386.385 (19.360) (5.01)%
Total capital assets 67.224.090 66,115,746 1,108,344 1.68 %
Accumulated depreciation (26,814416) _(25322.193) _(1.492.223) 5.89 %

Capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation $_ 40409674 $_ 40793553 $_ (383.879) (0.94)%

Additional information pertaining to capital assets is found in Note 3 to the financial statements.
Changes in Long-Term Debt
The following presents the changes in long-term debt at June 30, 2018, versus the prior fiscal yeat.

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Changes in Long-Term Debt
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 $ Variance % Variance

Notes and bonds payable $__ 26814568 §__ 27638622 (824.054) (2.98)%0

Additional information pertaining to long-term debt is found in Note 4 to the financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2018

Economic Factors

The Authority is primarily dependent upon HUD for the funding of operations. Therefore, the
Authority is affected more by the federal budget than by state or local economic conditions. Changes in
HUD grants affect the number of households that can be assisted under these federally funded
programs on an ongoling basis.

The Authority’s annual revenues for the Housing Choice Voucher Program is based primarily upon the
amounts received each year from HUD, which does not correlate directly to the amounts expended
each year for administrative costs and housing assistance payments expenses associated with the
Housing Choice Voucher Program. Therefore, for any given fiscal year the Authority’s revenues for the
Housing Choice Voucher Program may be more or less than the expenses for the program. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the Authority’s expenses associated with the Housing Choice Voucher
Program exceeded its revenues by $1,166,765. For the previous 2017 fiscal year, the Authority’s
expenses for the Housing Choice Voucher Program exceeded its revenues by $8,700. These excesses of
expenses over revenues were funded by a reduction in the Authority’s net position for the Housing
Choice Voucher Program.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a general overview of
the Authority’s finances and to show the Authority’s accountability for the money it reccives.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional financial
information should be addressed to the Finance Director at the Housing Authority of the City of
Alameda, 701 Atantic Avenue, Alameda, California 94501.

10
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018
Primary Component ~ OPEB Trust
Government Unit Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents -
unrestricted $ 29967717 $ 3,110,810 =
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 1.730.883 - ~
Investments - - 1,051,622
Due from other agencies 408,118 227,599 -
Tenant accounts receivable, net 110,565 = =
Accounts receivable - other, net 52,049 196,464 -
Interest receivable 149,233 - -
Prepaid expenses and other current
assets 62,926 3,773,717 -
Inventory 7.016 - -
Total current assets 32.488.507 7.308.590 1.051.622
Noncurrent assets:
Notes receivable 28,071,510 = -
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation of $26,814,416 40.409.674 15.201.861 =
Total noncurrent assets 08481184 15,201 861 =
Total assets 100.969.691 22510451 1.051.622
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension and OPEB plans 2.509.532 = =
Total assets and deferred outflows of
resources $ 103479223 §_ 22510451 § 1.051.622

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2018

Primary Component OPEB Trust
Government Unit Fund
LIABILITIES
Current liabilites:
Accounts payable - other § 556,304 § 32,630 $ -
Accounts payable - other agencies 7,864 - -
Tenant security deposits 552,522 - -
Other accrued liabilities F5,071 3,521,057 -
Interest payable 961,855 252,302 -
Compensated absences 135,827 . =
Notes and bonds payable 1.004.272 2,751,085 -
Total current liabilities 3293715 6.557.074 -
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 100,813 - -
FSS escrows 118,752 - -
Unearned revenue 3,466,717 - -
Net pension liability 2,127,040 - -
Net OPEB liability 222,661 - -
Notes and bonds payable 25810296 15,142.354 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 31.846.279 15,142 354 s
Total liabilities 35,139,994 21.699.428 =
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension and OPEB plans 2.507.319 - -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 13,595,106 (2,691,578) =
Restricted 1,059,609 = z
Unrestricted 51,177,195 3.502.601 1.051.622
Total net position 65.831.910 811023 §_ 1051622
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and net position $_103.479,223 $_ 22510451 $ 1.051.622

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Operating revenues:
Grants
Rents
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Administration
Utilities
Maintenance
Protective services
General
Tenant services
Housing assistance payments
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Gain on sale of fixed assets
Interest expense
Contributions
Extraordinary maintenance

Net I’lOI’l—()pCfﬂ ti[’lg revenuc

Change in net position

Total net position, beginning, as
previously reported

Change 1n accounting principle (Note 13)

Total net position, beginning - as adjusted

Total net position, ending

Primary Component OPEB Trust
Government Unit Fund
$ 38,819,160 s =
3,957,598 . -
4.053.554 80.298 77,712
46.830.312 80,298 77.712
7,168,354 161,888 520
1,251,579 - =
2,130,543 - =
210,000 - -
331,735 2,505 1,292
573,801 - -
29,612,706 - =
1.511.584 - =
42.790.802 164393 1.812
4.039.510 (84.095) 75.900
427,034 - -
6,622 = =
(1,184,230) - -
= 1,258,151 =
(29.143) - =
(779.717) 1.258.151 -
3.259.793 1,174,056 75.900
64,073,928 (363,033) -
(1.501.811) - 075722
62572117 (363.033) 975,722
65.831.910 § 811,023 §__1.051.622

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Primary Component
Government Unit
Cash flows from operating activities:
Grants recetved $ 38,666,887 § -
Cash received from tenants 3,876,085 -
Other miscellaneous cash receipts 4,004,793 4,015,903
Cash payments to suppliers and landlords (34,705,918) -
Cash payments to employees (5.471.485) -
Net cash provided by operating activities 6.370.362 4015903
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Interest paid on long-term debt (1 1’74 101) -
Principal paid on notes payable (985,346) -
Extraordinary maintenance (”9 143) -
Acquisition of fixed assets (1,127,700) (14,298,661)
Gain on sale of fixed assets 6,622 -
Issuance of debt 175,000 -
Proceeds from notes payable B 8.136.576
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (3,084.674) {6.162.085)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Collection of notes receivable 1,264,524 -
Mortgage interest income 7,131 -
Issuance of notes receivable (300,000)
Contributions - 1,258,151
Interest received from investments 340,681 =
Net cash provided by investing activities 1.312.336 1,258,151
Net increase (decrease) in cash 4,598,024 (888,031)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 27.100,576 3998841
Cash and cash equivalents - end $ 31698600 $ 3110810
Cash reconciliation as reported on the statements of net
position:
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted § 29967717 $ 3,110,810
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 1,730,883 =

§ 31698600 § 3110810

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Primary Component
Government Unit

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 4039510 % (84,095)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 1,511,584 -
Pension and OPEB expense 833,407 -
Loan forgiveness (13,708) -
(Increase) decrease in assets
Due from other agencies (163,000) (227,599)
Tenant accounts receivable, net (54,571)
Other accounts receivable, net (11,915) (192,554)
Prepaid expenses 150,773 925,560
Inventory (1,933) -
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable 356,994 (10,145)
Accounts payable to other agencies (357) -
Tenant security deposits 4,402 -
Accrued liabilities (319,801) 3,604,736
Accrued compensated absences 51,376 -
Uneatned revenue 3,430,309 -
Other noncurrent liabilities (3.442.708) -
Net cash provided by operating activities $___ 6370362 §___4.015.903

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (the
"Authority") conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America ("U.S. GAAP") as applicable to governmental entities. The following is a
summary of the more significant procedures:

A. Definition of Reporting Entity

The Authority was established on August 8, 1940, by a resolution of the City of
Alameda City Council. The Authority is governed by a seven-member Board of
Commissioners which is appointed by the Mayor of the City of Alameda, California (the
"City"). However, the Authority is not considered to be a component unit of the City or
any other primary government. Two members of the Board of Commissioners are
participants in programs administered by the Commission. The members of the
Commission are selected to serve for either two-year or four-year terms.

The basic financial statements includes the financial activities of the Authority, its
blended component unit, Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation, its discretely
presented component unit, Island City Development, and its fiduciary fund, the OPEB
Trust Fund.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - Isiand City Develgpment

Island City Development (a California nonprofit corporation) was established in 2014
primarily to engage in acquiring, developing, rehabilitating, owning, and managing
affordable housing for low-income and moderate-income individuals and families in the
City of Alameda, California. The executive director of the Authority appoints the
members of the nonprofit corporation's board of directors. The nonprofit corporation
has a year end of December 31, 2017, and the financial activity is reported as a separate
column on the financial statements.

Island City Development is the sole member of Del Monte Senior LLC, the 0.01%
managing general partner of Sherman and Buena Vista LP, created June 23, 2016, for
the purposes of developing and owning a 31-unit Low-Income Housing Tax Credit
property at 1031 Buena Vista Avenue in Alameda. This property was completed in
August 2018.

Additionally, Island City Development is the sole member of 2437 Eagle Avenue LLC,
the 0.01% managing general partner of Everett and Eagle LP, created November 22,
2016, for the purposes of developing and owning a 20-unit Low-Income Housing Tax
Credit property at 2437 Eagle Avenue in Alameda. This property is under construction
and is expected to be completed in 2019. Finally, Island City Development is the 0.1%
special limited partner for Stargell Commons LP created February 20, 2015 to own and
operate a 32-unit Low-Income Housing Tax Credit property at 2700 Bette Street in
Alameda.

The Authority reports a Fiduciary Trust Fund for its Other Post Employment Benefits
("OPEB") Trust Fund. The OPEB trust accounts for the assets are held in trust by the
Authority for the beneficiaries of the plan.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A. Definition of Reporting Entity (Continued)

A complete audited financial statement is separately issued for Island City Development
and its subsidiary limited partnerships and limited liability companies, and may be
obtained at the Authority's administrative offices located at 701 Atlantic Avenue,
Alameda, California.

Related Organizations - Blended Component Units

The Authority 1s the sole member of AHA Islander GP, LLC which is the 0.05%
general partner of the Alameda Islander LP. This limited partnership owns and operates
a 62-unit Low-Income Housing Tax Credit property at 2428 Central Avenue in
Alameda. The financial statements include the financial information of AHA Islander
GP, LLC.

The Authority is the sole member of 2216 Lincoln AHA, LLC which is the 0.0049%
General Partner of the Jack Capon Villa, LP. This limited partnership owns and
operates a 19-unit Low-Income Housing Tax Credit property at 2216 Lincoln Avenue

in Alameda. The financial statements include the financial information of 2216 Lincoln
AHA, LLC.

Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation ("AAHC") was established November 1,
2017, as a supporting organization of the Authority. Its primary role is to be a title
holding entity for Authority-owned properties. AAHC received federal tax exempt
status under Section 501(c)3 in 2017. The board of directors is comprised of all of the
current Authority's board of commissioners and the directors' terms run concurrent
with the commissioners'. AAHC has a fiscal year end on June 30 and the financial
activity is not reported separately on the financial statements. During 2018, the
Authority sold four of its properties to AAHC and both notes receivable and notes
payable were created between the two parties. As these notes were between a primary
government and its blended component unit, these notes were eliminated from the
tinancial statements.

B. Government-wide Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (ie., the statement of net position; the
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position; and the statement of cash
flows) report the financial information of the Authority's operations as a whole.

For financial reporting purposes, the Authority reports all of its operations as a single
business-type activity in a single enterprise housing fund. Therefore, for the Authority
the government-wide and fund financial statements are the same. These basic financial
statements are presented in accordance with the standards established by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB").
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
acornal basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when related cash flows take
place. Non-exchange transactions are those in which the Authority receives value
without directly giving equal value in exchange. These transactions include revenues
from federal, state, and local assistance programs. Revenues from these sources are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been met.

When the Authority incurs an expense for which both restricted and unrestricted
resources may be used, it is the Authority's policy to use restricted resources first, and
then unrestricted resources as needed.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-gperating
activities. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in
connection with the proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the Authority's enterprise housing fund are grants from federal
funding agencies for housing assistance payments earned, administrative and developer
fees, and rental income from its owned housing units. The Authority is party to services
agreements with the City to provide various housing-related services. The cost of these
services is reimbursed on an actual cost basis, plus a fixed fee. Operating expenses
include employee services and supplies, administrative expenses, management fees,
utilities, housing assistance payments to landlords, and depreciation of its capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

The Authority applies all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB")
pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989, in accounting and reporting for its
proprietary operations.

Separate statements are also included in the Discretely Presented Component Unit and
the Fiduciary Fund as shown on the financial statements. The Discretely Presented
Component Unit and the Fiduciary Fund are separate legal entities from the Authority.

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position

a. Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the accompanying statement of cash flows, all highly liquid cash and
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased and cash restricted
by federal governmental requirements are considered cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits and savings accounts.
All of the Authority's cash equivalents can be converted to cash in a relatively short
amount of time. Therefore, all cash and cash equivalents, including restricted amounts,
ate reported in the statement of cash flows.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued)

b. Restricted assets

Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent deposits that are used for replacement
reserves, security deposit payable amounts to tenants and amounts that are required by
grants from HUD to be used only to provide housing assistance for individuals and
families that meet various income, age, and employment standards.

¢. Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross value and are reduced by an allowance for
doubttful accounts if such an amount is considered applicable.

d. Inventories and prepaid assets

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out ("FIFO") method.
Inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and
are recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements.

e. Capital assels

Capital assets which include land, buildings, improvements, and furniture and
equipment, are reported at historical cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair
value at the time received. Interest expense during any development periods is
capitalized.

Maintenance, minor repairs and replacements are recorded as expenses; extraordinary
replacements of property resulting in property betterments are charged to the property
accounts. Depreciation is charged to operations using the straight-line method based on
the estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives of the various
asset categories are as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Improvements 15 years
Furniture and Equipment 5 to 10 years

| Compensated absences

It is the Authority’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation and sick pay benefits. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred or at
separation. Unpaid sick balances are not paid at separation.

& Taxes

The Authority is exempt from federal and state income taxes, and county property
taxes.

h. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is not employed by the Authority.
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NOTE 1

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued)

&. Net position

Net position represents the differences between assets and liabilities. Net position
consists of investment in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and
unrestricted net position. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt,
consists of capital assets, net of depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
borrowing used for the construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

J. Deferred outflows/ inflows of resomrces

In addition to assets and liabilities, the Statement of Net Position includes separate
sections for deferred outflows and inflows of resources. These separate sections
represent a consumption or acquisition of net position that applies to future periods
and will not be recognized as outflows (revenues) or inflows (expenses) until that time.

k. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability ("NPL") and deferred
outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the Authority's California Public Employees' Retirement
System ("CalPERS") plans and additions to/deductions from the Plans' fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

E. New GASB Pronouncements

During fiscal year 2018, the Authority implemented GASB Statements No. 74 and 75,
Financial Reporting for Post employment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans and Acconnting
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension Plans, respectively. The
primary objective of these statements is to improve accounting and financial reporting
information for postemployment benefits other than pensions for the plan and state
and local government employers that sponsor these plans. Implementation of these
statements resulted in changes in presentation and disclosures of the OPEB plan in the
financial statements. See Note 13 for effect on the financial statements.

F. Future GASB Pronouncemnents

In November 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations
("GASB No. 83"). GASB No. 83 addresses accounting and financial reporting for
certain asset retirement obligations ("ARO"). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability
associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government that has legal
obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital
assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in GASB No. 83.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. Future GASB Pronouncements (Continued)

GASB No. 83 will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments
by establishing uniform criteria for governments to recognize and measure certain
AROs, including obligations that may not have previously reported. GASB No. 83 will
enhance the decision-usefulness of the information provided to financial statement
users by requiring disclosures related to those AROs. The requirements of GASB No.
83 are effective for reporting petiods beginning after June 15, 2018. The Authority does
not believe that there will be any financial statement effect related to GASB No. 83.

In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities ("GASB No. 84").
The objective of which is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary
activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities
should be reported. The requirements of GASB No. 84 will enhance consistency and
comparability by (1) establishing specific criteria for identifying activities that should be
reported as fiduciary activities and (2) clarifying whether and how business-type
activities should report their fiduciary activities. The requirements of GASB No. 84 are
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Authority does
not believe that there will be any financial statement effect related to GASB No. 84.

In June 2017, GASB 1ssued Statement No. 87, Leases ("GASB No. 87"). The objective
of GASB No. 87 is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. GASB No. 87
increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring recognition
of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating
leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the
payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting
based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an
underlying asset. Under GASB No. 87, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments' leasing activities.

GASB No. 87 will increase the usefulness of governments' financial statements by
requiring reporting of certain lease liabilities that currently are not reported. It will
enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by requiring lessees
and lessors to report leases under a single model. GASB No. 87 also will enhance the
decision-usefulness of the information provided to financial statement users by
requiring notes to financial statements related to the timing, significance, and purpose
of a government's leasing arrangements.

The requirements of GASB No. 87 are effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2019. The Authority does not believe that there will be any financial
statement effect related to GASB No. 87.

G. Estimates

Management of the Authority has made certain estimates and assumptions relating to
the reporting of assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses to prepare the financial
statements. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 1L

NOTE 2.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

H. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Each year the Authority's Board of Commissioners adopts an operating budget. This
budget may be revised during the year to give consideration to unanticipated revenue
and expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at the time of the adoption
of the annual budget.

L. Loans Issued During the 2018 Fiscal Year

There were no new loans issued duting fiscal year 2018 aside from the notes between
the Authority and AAHC previously mentioned in Section A.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
A. Policies

California law requires banks and savings loan institutions to pledge government
securities with a market value of 110% of the Authority's cash on deposit, or first trust
deed mortgage notes with a market value of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these
deposits. Under California Law this collateral is held in a separate investment pool by
another institution in the Authority's name and places the authority ahead of general
creditors of the institution.

The Authority and its fiscal agents invest in individual investments and in investment
pools. Individual investments ate evidenced by specific identifiable securites
instruments, ot by electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the institution
issuing the security, called the book entry system. In order to increase security, the
Authority employs the Trust Department of a bank as the custodian of certain managed
investments, regardless of their form.

The Authority's cash equivalents are carried at fair value, as required by generally
accepted accounting principles. The Authority adjusts the carrying value of cash
equivalents to reflect their fair value at each fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of
those adjustments in income for that fiscal year.

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be liquid assets with original maturities of
90 days or less for purposes of measuring cash flows.

B. Classification

Cash and cash equivalents are classified in the financial statements as shown below,
based on whether or not their use is restricted under the terms of Authority debt
instruments or agency agreements. Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2018, are as
follows:

Unrestricted $ 29,967,717
Restricted 1,730,883

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 31.698.600

o]
2
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Classification (Continued)

The $31,698,600 of cash and cash equivalents consists of $5,267,867 maintained on
deposit in banks, §934,499 maintained by loan servicing agencies, $14,898,006 deposited
in the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund ("LAIF"), $10,597,978
deposited in the California Asset Management Program ("CAMP"), and $450 in petty
cash. Of the amounts on deposit with banks, $250,000 is covered by federal deposit
insurance. The remaining $5,017,867 is required by California law to be collateralized by
governmental securities with a market value of 110% of the deposit or with first deed
mortgages with a value of 150% of the uninsured amount.

The $934,499 of cash equivalents maintained by loan servicing agencies reflects
amounts held by trust departments of two lending agencies. These amounts will be used
for future rehabilitation and operating costs for some of the Authority's housing
complexes.

C. Investments Authorized bv the California Government Code and the Authority's
Investment Policy

The Authority's investment policy and the California Government Code allow the
Authority to invest in the following, provided rating of the issuers are acceptable to the
Authority; and approved percentages and maturities are not exceeded. Each January,
the Board of Commissioners approves the Authority's Investment Policy. The table
below also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code or the
Authority's Investment Policy where the Authority's Investment Policy is more
restrictive.

Maximum Maximum
Minimum Percentage Investment

Mazximum Credit of in One
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality  Portfolio Issuer
Repurchase Agreements N/A N/A N/A N/A
California Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) On Demand N/A N/A N/A
U.S. Treasury Bonds, Notes & Bills N/A N/A N/A N/A
U.S. Agency & U.S. Government N/A N/A N/A N/A
Bankers Acceptances 180 Days N/A 40% 30%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit N/A A 30% N/A
Time Certificates of Deposit N/A N/A 30% N/A
Medium Term Corporate Notes 5 Years A 30% N/A
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A AAA 15% 109
County Agency Investment Fund ~ On Demand  N/A 30% N/A
Reverse Repurchase Agreement N/A N/A 20% N/A

In the period under review, the Authority removed investments placed in government
securities and divided its investments between LAIF and CAMP.
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D. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements and Governmental Grants

The Authority must maintain requited amounts of cash and investments or fiscal agents
under terms of certain debt issues and governmental grants. These funds are
unexpended bond proceeds or are pledged as reserves to be used if the Authority fails
to meet its obligations under these debt issuances or governmental grants. The
California Government Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with
Authority policies, bond indentures or State Stature. The table below identifies the
investment types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The table
also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements:

Maximum Maximum
Minimum Percentage Investment
Maximum  Quality of in One
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Credit Portfolio Issuer

For U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Funds

State of California Local Agency No Limit N/A No Limit  No Limit
Investment Funds (LAIF)

Repurchase Agreements N/A N/A No Limit No Limit
U.S. Government Obligations & No Limit N/A No Limit  No Limit

Agencies

Sweep Account No Limit N/A No Limit  No Limit
Insured Super NOW Accounts No Limit N/A No Limit No Limit
Insured Money Market Deposit No Limit N/A No Limit  No Limit
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit No Limit N/A 30% No Limit
Insured Demand & Saving Deposits N/A N/A No Limit  No Limit
STRIPS, Principal Only No Limit N/A No Limit No Limit
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A AAA 20% No Limit

U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds ~ No Limit N/A No Limit  No Limit

For Non-U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Funds

Prime Commercial Paper 180 Days N/A 10% 30%

City of Alameda Bonds N/A N/A No Limit  No Limit

U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds ~ No Limit N/A No Limit  No Limit

Local Agency's Obligations within CA  No Limit N/A No Limit  No Limit
State, including LAIF

U.S. Government obligations and No Limit N/A No Limit No Limit
Agencies
Collateralized Bank Deposit No Limnit N/A No Limit No Limit
Bankers Acceptances 180 Days N/A 40% 30%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit No Limit N/A 30% No Limit
Repurchase Agreements 92 Days N/A 20% No Limit
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A N/A 15% 10%
Trust Indentures N/A N/A No Limit  No Limit
Medium Term Notes 5 Years A 30% No Limit
Mortgage & Equipment Lease 5 Years AA 20% No Limit
Obligations
24
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E. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the market interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. Information
about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Authority's investments (including
investments held by bond trustees) to market rate fluctuations is provided by the
following table that shows the distribution of the Authority's investments by maturity:

12 Months or One to Five More than

Cash Equivalent Type Less Years Five Years Total
LAIF $14,898,006 $ = $ - $14,898,006
CAMP 10,597,978 - - 10,597.978
Total Investments $25495984 § - $ - $25.495.984

F. Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a
rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the
actual rating as of June 30, 2018, for each Authority cash equivalent type as provided by
Standard and Poor's except as noted:

Cash Equivalent Type Amount

Not Rated:
LAIF $14,898,006
CAMP $10,597,978

G. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority is required to disclose investments that represent a concentration of five
percent or more of investments in any issuer, held by individual Authority Funds in the
securities of issuers other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds and external
investment pools. At June 30, 2018, thete were no investments of this type.

H. Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank or brokerage failure, the
Authority's deposits may not be teturned. As previously stated the Authority's bank
deposits are either covered by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC")
insurance or are collateralized.

2
w
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CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summaty of the Authority's changes in capital assets for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018:

Adjustments

Balance and Balance
6/30/2017 Additions Deletions 6/30/2018

Non-depreciable assets:

Land $ 22,022,054 $ - $ - $ 22,022,054
Construction in progress 286.033 438871 (716.186) 8718
Total non-depreciable
assets 22 308.087 438871 {716.186) 22030772
Depreciable assets:
Buildings and 43421274 638,834 716,186 44 826,294
improvements
Equipment 386,385 - (19.361) 367,024
Total depreciable assets 43,807,659 688,834 696,825 45,193,318
Accumulated depreciation (25.322.193) (1.511.584) 19.361 (26.814.416)
Net depreciable assets 18485466 $__(822.750) § 716,186 18.378.902
Tortal capital assets, net $ 40793553 $_ 40409674

LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30,

2018:

Balance Balance Current
6/30/2017 Additions Deletions 6/30/2018 Portion
Bonds payable:
PNC Bank $ 5,400,000 $ = $(173,986) $ 5,226,014 § 184413
Notes payable:
Amerisphere 13,711,882 < (221,423) 13,490,459 234216
Amerisphere 5,974,243 - (562,667) 5,411,576 584,134
City of Alameda 1,596,127 175,000 (27,258) 1,743,869 1,509
County of Alameda 956,370 - (13,720) 942 650 -
Compensated
Absences 185,264 51.376 - 236.640 135.827
$_27.823886 $_226.376 $(999.054) $27.051,208 $1,140.099
26
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LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The following is a schedule of debt payment requirements to maturity for long-term
obligations other than compensated absences:

Principal
Year Ending June 30: Payments Interest Payments  Total Payments
2019 $ 1,004,272 § 1,058,844 § 2,063,116
2020 1,051,163 1,023,027 2,074,190
2021 1,100,346 981,007 2,081,353
2022 1,151 539 939,472 2,091,411
2023 1,206,065 895,924 2,101,989
Thereafter 21.300.783 13,176,611 34477394

$ 26814568 § 18074885 § 44,889,453

A description of the debt recorded at June 30, 2018, with the Authority is as follows:
Bonds Payable:

A deed of trust bond payable was issued on May 1, 2005, totaling $6,800,000 for the
Parrot Village and Eagle Village Apartments. The bonds payable are administered by
PNC Bank. The bonds accrue interest at a variable rate based upon the weekly short-
term bond interest rate. The bonds require annual payments in the amounts necessary
to pay all principal of premium, if any, and interest on the bonds as they become due.
The bonds mature May 15, 2035. The outstanding balance on the bonds totaled
$5.226,014 at June 30, 2018,

Notes Payable:

Lender Original Note Note Date
Alameda County $ 35,000 7/9/1996
City of Alameda $ 235,900 7/15/1996
City of Alameda $ 282,700 7/26/1996
Alameda County $ 14,190 2/10/1997
City of Alameda $ 570,000 6/18/1998
Alameda County $ 380,000 9/1/2009
Alameda County $ 536,400 9/1/2009
City of Alameda $ 96,000 11/21/2013
Amerisphere § 14,291,000 6/30/2014
Amerisphere $§ 7,500,000 6/30/2014
City of Alameda $ 575,000 3/30/2016
City of Alameda $ 25,000 4/15/2016
27
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LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Notes Payable (Continned)

The Authority assumed a loan, originally entered into by the Filipino American
Community Services Agency on July 9, 1996, payable to the County of Alameda on
September 8, 2009, for the Lincoln House property at 745 Lincoln Avenue in the
amount of $35,000. This note bears no interest. However, if this note is not paid when
due, the note will bear interest at 7% per annum for each day the note is not paid in full.
The note is payable upon sale or transfer of the property whose deed of trust secures
the note. The outstanding balance on this loan at June 30, 2018, was $26,250.

A promissory note agreement for $235,900 was entered into with the City of Alameda
on July 15, 1996, for three condominiums at the following addresses: 2137 Ots Drive,
2209 Otis Drive, 1825 Shoreline Drive. This note bears no interest. Payment on this
note was deferred until December 31, 2006, at which time semi-annual payments of
principal are due based on an amortization schedule. The principal is due and payable
on December 31, 2055. The outstanding balance on this note as of June 30, 2018, was
$220,169.

A promissory note agreement for $282,700 was entered into with the City of Alameda
on July 26, 1996, for four condominiums at the following addresses: 955 Shorepoint
Court and 965 Shorepoint Court. This note bears no interest. Payment on this note is
deferred untl December 31, 2026, at which time semi-annual payments of principal are
due based on an amortization schedule. The principal is due and payable on December
31, 2055. The outstanding balance on this note as of June 30, 2018, was $282,700.

A promissory note agreement for $14,190 was entered into with the County of Alameda
on February 20, 1997, for the 1917 Stanford Street property. This note bears no
interest. However, if this note is not paid when due the note will bear interest at 7% pet
annum for each day the note is not paid in full The note is payable upon sale or
transfer of the property whose deed of trust secures the note. This note was paid off
during fiscal year 2018.

A promissory note agreement for $570,000 was entered into with the City of Alameda
on June 18, 1998, for the China Clipper property at 460 Buena Vista Avenue. This note
bears interest at 3% per annum. Both interest and principal payments on this loan are
deferred untl the note's due date of June 30, 2057. The outstanding balance on this
note at June 30, 2018, was $570,000.

A promissory note agreement for $380,000 was entered into with the County of
Alameda on September 1, 2009, for the Lincoln House property at 745 Lincoln Avenue.
The note bears simple interest at 3% per annum. The Authority also assumed the
previously accrued interest in the sum of $154,470. The principal and accrued interest
are due and payable on July 30, 2067. Principal and interest are payable annually
throughout the term of the loan through Residual Receipts as defined in the note. The
outstanding balance on this note at June 30, 2018, was $380,000.

A promissory note agreement for $536,400 was entered into with the County of
Alameda on September 1, 2009, for the 1917 Sherman Street property. The note bears
simple interest at 3% per annum. The Authority also assumed the previously accrued
interest in the sum of $184,735. The principal and accrued interest are due and payable

28
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LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Notes Payable (Continued)

on July 30, 2067. Principal and interest are payable annually throughout the term of the
loan through Residual Receipts as defined in the note. The outstanding balance on this
note at June 30, 2018, was §536,400.

A promissory note agreement for $96,000 was entered into with the City of Alameda on
November 21, 2013, for the Anne B. Diament property at 920 Park Street. The note
bears no interest. The principal is deferred and forgivable until November 22, 2028.
The outstanding balance on this note at June 30, 2018, was $96,000.

On June 30, 2014, the Authority entered into a mortgage note totaling $14,291,000 with
Amerisphere Multifamily Finance, LLC. The mortgage is serviced by NorthMarq
Capital. The note is secured by the property referred to as the Esperanza Apartments at
1903 Third Street. The note bears interest at 5.63% per annum and requires combined
monthly principal and interest payments totaling $82,312. The note matures and is
payable in full on July 1, 2044. The outstanding balance on the note at June 30, 2018,
was $13,490 459,

On June 30, 2014, the Authority entered into a mortgage note totaling $7,500,000 with
Amerisphere Multifamily Finance, LLC. The mortgage is serviced by NorthMarq
Capital. The note is secured by the property referred to as the Independence Plaza at
703 Atlantic Avenue. The note bears interest at 3.75% per annum and requires
combined monthly principal and interest payments totaling $64,758. The note matures
and is payable in full on July 1, 2026. The outstanding balance on the note at June 30,
2018, was $5,411,576.

A first amendment to a promissory note agreement for $575,000 was entered into with
the City of Alameda on April 1, 2017, retroactive to March 30, 2016, for property
located at 738 Eagle Avenue, Alameda, CA. This note bears simple interest at 2.33%
per annum. The principal, together with accrued interest, is due and payable on April 1,
2074, and the loan can be forgiven on March 30, 2031. The outstanding balance on this
note at June 30, 2018, was $575,000.

A promissory note agreement for $25,000 was entered into with the City of Alameda on
April 15, 2016, for the China Clipper property at 460 Buena Vista Avenue. The note
bears interest at 2.33% compounded annually. The principal and accrued interest are
due and payable on April 15, 2074. Principal and interest are payable annually
throughout the term of the loan through Residual Receipts as defined in the note. This
note was pald off during fiscal year 2018.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the Authority's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation leave up to a maximum of their annual accrual rate plus 10 days, up to a
maximum of 250 hours at any time. This leave will be used in future petiods or paid to
employees upon separation from the Authority. Accrued vacation leave has been valued
by the Authority and has been recorded as cutrent compensated absences of $135,827
and noncurrent compensated absences of $100,813 for a total of $236,640 as of June
30, 2018.
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COMPENSATED ABSENCES (CONTINUED)

It is the Authority's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick
leave, however, the value of unused sick leave is not payable upon separation from the
Authority.

PENSION PLAN

Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the NPL and deferred outflows /inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position ("FNP")
of the Authority's Retirement System ("CalPERS") plans ("Plans") and additions
to/deductions from the Plans' FNP have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. In addition to CalPERS Plans, the
Authority adopted the Public Agency Retirement Services ("PARS") Plan effective Apil
22,2012, as an alternative plan to Social Security for their employees who otherwise are
not eligible for participation in the Authority's other retirement system(s).

GASB No. 78 - Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined
Benefir Pension Plans.

The objective of this statement, issued December of 2015, is to address a practice issue
regarding the scope and applicability of Statement No. 68, Aconnting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions. This issue is associated with pensions provided through certain
multiple employer defined pension plans and to state or local government employers
whose employees are provided with such pensions.

The Authority is required to implement the provisions of this statement for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018 (effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015).
This statement resulted in a change in current practice and had a material effect on the
financial statements of the Authority.

General Information about the Pension Plan:

Plan Descriptions - The Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by CalPERS. A full description of the pension plan benefit
provisions, assumptions for funding purposes but not accounting purposes and
membership informadon is listed in the June 30, 2017 Annual Actuarial Valuation
Report. This repott is a publicly available valuation report that can be obtained at
CalPERS' website under "Forms and Publications”. All qualified permanent and
probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Authority's cost-sharing
multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by CalPERS. Benefit
provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and the Authority's
resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of
the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership
information that can be found on the CalPERS website.
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General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued):

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the
Authority's cost-sharing agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans
administered by CalPERS. Benefit provisions under the Plans ate established by State
statute and Authority's resolution.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits,
annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be
public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service,
equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with five years of total service are
eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for
non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the
following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional
Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan is applied as
specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law.

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018, are summarized as follows:
P 3 >

Miscellaneous Plans

Prior To January On or After

Hire date 1,2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting formula 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 50-63 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible

compensation 1.426% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 6.886% 6.500%
Required employer contribution rates 9.558% 6.930%

31
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General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued):

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law
requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on
an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a
change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through the CalPERS'
annual actuarial valuation process. The plan's actuarially determined rate is based on the
estimated amount necessary to pay the costs of benefits earned by employees during the
year, with an additional amount to pay any unfunded accrued liability. The Authority’s
contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended. Payments made by the
Authority to satisfy contribution requirements that are identified by the pension plan
terms as plan member contribution requitements are classified as plan member
contributions.

For the measurement period ended June 30, 2018 (the measurement date), the active
employee's contribution rates are 6.886% (First Level/Classic Members) and 6.500%
(PEPRA New Members) of annual payroll, and the average employer's rates are 9.558%
and 6.930% of annual payroll.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the contributions recognized as part of pension
expense for each plan were as follows:

Miscellaneous
Plan Classic PEPRA
Contributions - employer $ 366,127 9.558% 6.930%
Contributions - employee 263.343 6.886% 6.500%0
Total 5 629470

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

The following table shows the plan's proportionate share of the miscellaneous risk pool
collective net pension liability over the measurement period:

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

Net Pension Liability
Balance at 6/30/2016 $ 1,684,952 0.019472%
Balance at 6/30/2017 2.127.040 0.021448%
Net Pension Liability Year-to-Year Increase $ 442 088
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General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued):

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)

The Authority's net pension liability of $2,127,040 is measured as the proportionate
share of the net pension liability of $3,942,047,621 (or 0.021448%). The net pension
liability is measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability for each Plan
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuatial valuation as of
June 30, 2017, rolled forward to June 30, 2018, using standard update procedures. The
Authority paid down $366,127 during the year ended June 30, 2018. Since the pension
liability is based on the measurement date of June 30, 2017, the outstanding pension
liability here does not reflect the pay down of contributions made during the year ended
June 30, 2018. The Authority's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of the Authority's long-term share of contributions to the pension plans
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially
determined.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Authority recognized pension expense of
$812,404 for the plan. At June 30, 2018, the Authority repotted deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following:

Deferred
Qutflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to
measurement date $ 381,436 % -
Differences between actual and expected
experience 5,296 75,868
Changes in assumptions 657,042 50,101
Differences in contributions and proportionate
share of contributions 593,543 109,907
Net differences between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments 680,612 532,016
Adjustments due to differences in proportions 175217 444,191
Total $ 2493446 % 1212083
33
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PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued):

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)

The $381,436 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2019 (measurement petriod ended June 30,
2018). These amounts are reflected in the financial statements as part of the deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows (Inflows)

Measurement Period Ended June 30: of Resources
2018 $ 342,782
2019 396,430
2020 248,939
2021 (88,224)
Thereafter -

The amounts above are the net of outflows and inflows recognized in the measurement
period ended June 30, 2018.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

For the measurement period ending June 30, 2017 (the measurement date), the total
pension liability was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2017 total pension
liability. Both the June 30, 2016 total pension liability and the June 30, 2017 total
pension liability were determined using the following actuarial methods and
assumptions:
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General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued):

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension
Liability (Continued)

Miscellaneous Plan

Valuation Date June 30, 2016

Measurement Date June 30, 2017

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Actuarial Assumptions Discount Rate 7.15%

[nflation 2.70%

Payroll Growth 3.00%

Projected Salary Increase Varies by entry age and service
Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data

Mortality Rate (1) for all funds

Contract COLA up to 2.75% untl
Purchasing Power Protection Allowance
Floor on Purchasing Power Applies 2.75%
Post Retrement Benefit Increase thereafter

(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. The table
includes 15 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of
scale MP2016. For more details on this table, please refer to the 2017 Experience Study
Report (based on CalPERS' demographic data from 1997 to 2015) that can be found on
the CalPERS' website.

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was
7.15%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution
rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates,
actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - The long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension
fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected
compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term
(11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for
both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected
return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was
then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to
the nearest one quarter of one percent.

35
Page 45 of 85



NOTE 6.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued):

Discount Rate (Continued)

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as followed:

New Strategic Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Year 1-10 (a)  Years 11+ (b)
Global Equity 50.00 % 4.80 % 5.98 %
Fixed Income 28.00 % 2.00 % 2.62 %
Inflation Assets = Yo 0.77 % 1.81 %
Private Equity 8.00 % 6.30 % 7.23 %
Real Estate 13.00 % 3.76 % 4.93 %
Liquidity 1.00 % -% (0.92)%

Total 100.00 %

In the system's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR"), Fixed Income is
included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in Short-Term Investments;
Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt
Securities.

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% is used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% is used for this period.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in
the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset), calculated using the discount rate of 7.15%, as well as what the Authority's
proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.15%) or one percentage
point higher (8.15%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate Current Discount Rate
less 1% Discount Rate plus 1%
(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%0)
Plan's net pension liability $ 4292835 § 2127040 % 333,289

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension
plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS' financial
teports.

Payable to the Pension Plan - At June 30, 2018, there was no outstanding account
payable for contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Subsequent Events - There were no subsequent events that would materially affect
the results presented in this disclosure.
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLLANS (OPEB)

Plan description - The Authority participates in the CalPERS 2% at 55 Public Agency
Miscellaneous Employees' pension plan for all regular employees hired before January
1, 2013, and 2% at 62 for those hired on or after January 1, 2013.

Employees who retire with a CalPERS pension (at least age 50, or age 52 for
employees hired on or after January 1, 2013, with five years of services) are eligible for
post-employment medical benefits.

The Authority contributes the minimum amount provided under Government Code
Section 22825 of the Public Employees Medical and Hospital Care Act ($125 per
month in 2016, increasing to $128 in 2017). Retirees must contribute any premium
amounts in excess of the Authority's contributions described above. Amounts paid by
the Authority continue for the lifetime of the retiree and any surviving spouse, subject
to CalPERS' eligibility requirements.

Employees Covered by the Plan

Active employees ; 49
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 4
Total 53

During the July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 measurement period, the Authority entered
into an agreement with CalPERS whereby the Authority patticipates in the California
Employers” Retiree Benefit Trust Fund Program ("CERBT"), an agent-multiple
employer postemployment health plan, to prefund other postemployment benefits
through CalPERS. The financial statements for CERBT may be obtained by writing
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System, Constituent Relations Office,
CERT (OPEB), P.O. Box 242709, Sacramento, California 94229-2709 or by calling
888-225-7377.

Requirements of GASB 75 — GASB Statement No. 75 has mandated disclosure of
other post-employment benefit (OPEB) liabilities for all government employers
beginning in 2009. During fiscal years prior to 2012, the Authority's employees were
actually employees of the City and not employees of the Authority itself, therefore there
was no OPEB obligation or expense recognized in fiscal years prior to 2012. The
provisions of GASB 75 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017.

Funding Policy — Prior to July 1, 2016, the Authority financed the OPEB retiree
health plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. For the measurement period ended June 30,
2017, the Authority made a pay-as-you-go payment of $30,988 plus a one-time special
contribution in the amount of $§981,940 to CERBT. The Authority intends to make
annual payments equal to the actuarially determined contribution.

As of June 30, 2017, the fair value of the Authority’s investments in the CERBT was
§975,722. This balance is net of all plan activity during the measurement period ending
June 30, 2017, including net annual investment earnings amounting to ($6,213) and
pay-as-you-go benefit payments of $30,988.
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

The following table summarizes the sources used to satisfy measurement period 2016/
2017 contributions to the plan:

Employer Contribution to CERBT $ 981,940

Pay-as-you-go Payments unreimbursed by trust 1,833,461

Active Implicit Rate Subsidy Transferred to OPEB 20,989

Total Defined Benefit Pay-as-you-go Costs $ 2.836.390
Net OPEB Liability

Net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total OPEB liability used
to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation date
October 31, 2016 that was rolled forward to detetmine the June 30, 2017 total OPEB
liability based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions.

Description Method/Assumption June 30, 2017
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal, Level Percent of Pay
Discount Rate 7.28%

Inflation 2.00%

Salary Increases 3.25%

Investment Rate of Return 7.28%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 8.00% pre-65 and 5.50% post-65 initial

trend rates for 2018. Decreasing 0.25% per
year until uldmate rate of 5.00% is reached
in 2030 pre-65 and 2020 post-65.
Mortality Pre-retitement CalPERS 2014 Mortality for
pre-retirement
Post-retirement: CalPERS 2014 Mortality
for post-retirement.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined
amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past
experiences and new estimates ate made about the future. Actuarial calculations were
performed based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in
effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing cost between the
Authority and plan members through June 30, 2017. Additionally, actuarial calculations
reflect a long-term perspective and include methods and assumptions that were
designed to reduce short-term volatility of actuarial accrued liabilities and actuarial value
of assets. The Authority has relied on the work of the Authority’s actuary to determine
the Authority’s net OPEB liability, and considers the underlying assumptions used by
the actuary to be reasonable.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The valuation uses a discount rate of 7.28% per yeat, net of investment expenses and
including inflation. This is a long-term rate of return assumption on plan assets. This
rate is based on the general inflation rate and expected real rate of return required for
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (Continued)

CalPERS reporting for use by employers who elect certain investment strategies as
participants in CERBT. The target allocation and best estimates for long-term expected
real rates of return for each major asset class, as of June 30, 2017, the measurement
date, are summarized in the following table.

Arithmetic Long-Term

Target Expected Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return
Equity 60.00 % 5.62%
Fixed Income 32.00 % 1.70%
REITSs 8.00 % 5.06%
Total 100.00 %o

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

The following table shows the changes in the Net OPEB Liability recognized over the
measurement period.

Increase/Decrease
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability
® ©) @-0)
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 2477261 § - § 2,477,261
Service Cost 162,835 - 162,835
Interest 74,812 - 74,812

Change in benefit terms - . .
Differences between Expected

and Actual Experience (3,275) - (3,275)
Changes in Assumptions (1,482,802) - (1,482,802)
Contributions - Employer = 1,012,388 (1,012,388)
Contributions - Employee - - -
Benefit Payments (6,213) 5,213

Administrative Expenses (30,448) (30,448) _
Net Changes - (5) 5

Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 1,198383 § 975722  § 222661

The required schedule of changes in the net OPEB liability and related ratios
immediately following the notes to the financial statements presents the beginning and
ending balances of the total OPEB liability, the plan fiduciary net position available for
OPEB benetits, and the net OPEB liability, as well as the itemized changes in those
amounts during the fiscal year. The schedule also reports a ratio of plan fiduciary net
position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability, the payroll amount for current
employees in the plan (covered employee payroll), and a raton of the net OPEB
liability as a percentage of the covered employee payroll. One year of information is
presented and will build to 10 years of information on a prospective basis.
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NOTE 7. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (Continued

The required schedule of employer contributions immediately following the notes to
the financial statements presents the actuarially determined contribution to the OPEB
Plan, the actual contribution, the difference between the actual and actuarially
determined contributions, and a ratio of actual contributions as a percentage of covered
employee payroll.

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability Due to Changes in the Discount Rate —
Pursuant to GASB 75, the following table represents the net OPEB liability, calculated
using the current discount rate of 7.28%, as well as what it would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one petrcentage point higher
than the current rate:

Current
% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.28)% (7.28)% (8.28)%
Net OPEB Liability $ 407228 §% 222661 § 73.594

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability Due to Changes in the Health Care Cost
Trend Rate — Pursuant to GASB 75, the following table represents the net OPEB
liability of the Authority, calculated using the current health care cost trend rate of
8.00% /5.50% as well as what it would be if it were calculated using a trend rate that is
one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate:

Current Healthcare

1% Decrease Cost Trend Rate 1% Increase
(9.00% pre-65/
(7.00% pre-65/ (8.00% pre-65/ 6.50% post-65
4.50% post-65 5.50% post-65 decreasing to
decreasing to 4.00%  decreasing to 5.00% 6.00% Pre-65/
Pre-65/post-65) Pre-65/post-65) post-65)
Net OPEB Liability § 52958 § 222661 § 435922
40
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NOTE 7. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (Continued)
OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the Authority recognized OPEB expense of
$36,938. At June 30, 2018, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources

OPEB Contributions Subsequent to

Measurement Date ) : b -
Net Difference Between Expected and

Actual Experience in the Measurement

of the TOL = 2,854
Assumption Changes - 1,292 382
Net Difference Between Projected and

Actual Investment Farnings 16,086 =
Total $ 16.086 % 1295236

Pursuant to GASB 75, amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to
OPEB contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2017, will
be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB Liability in the fiscal year ending June 30,
2019. These amounts are reflected in the financial statements as part of the deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized
OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30: Amount
2019 % (186,820)
2020 (186,820)
2021 (186,820)
2022 (186,818)
2023 (190,841)
Thereafter (341.031)
Total $ (1.279.150)

NOTE 8. NOTES RECEIVABLE

At June 30, 2018, the Authority had $28,071,510 of notes receivable due to them, the
balance being comprised of $24,777,795 of loans.
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NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

A summary of the Authority's loans is outlined below:

Original

Borrower Note Note Date

Playa del Alameda $243 109 1/31/2000
Breakers at Bayport LP $2,015,000 1/4/2004
Taplin, Tarriko $23,600 3/9/2007
Nebeker, Bud $31,800 12/18/2007
Moore, Annalisa $31,800 1/23/2008
Shinsei Gardens Apartments LP $4.000,000 3/24/2008
Alameda I[slander LP $8.600,000 9/27/2011
Jack Capon Villa LP $225,000 11/1/2013
Jack Capon Villa LP $1,400,000 11/1/2013
Jack Capon Villa LP $200,000 11/1/2013
Rojas, Ana $4,148 4/16/2013
Assefa, Fikre $4,148 6/10/2013
Petochis, Nicola $7.676 8/1/2013
[sland City Development - 2437 Eagle $1,000,000 8/10/2015
Island City Development - Rosefield $1,000,000  2/10/2016
Stargell Commons LP $2,000,000 11/24/2015
Sherman and Buena Vista LP $3,600,000 12/1/2016
Sherman and Buena Vista LP $3,410,000 12/1/2016
Island City Development - Operating Capital $250,000 4/28/2017
Everett and Eagle LLP $4,250,000  6/21/2017
Island City Development - North Housing $300,000 10/23/2017

Effective January 31, 2000, Playa del Alameda Associates entered into an amended and
restated promissory note with the Authority for §243,109 for the Play del Alameda
property located at 148 Crolls Garden Court. The interest accrues at 1% per annum.
The full principal and interest are due on January 31, 2055, or upon the occurrence of a
default as defined in the loan agreement. The loan was paid off during fiscal year 2018.

Effective January 5, 2004, Resource for Community Development entered into a
promissory note with the Authority for an amount not to exceed $2,015,000 for the
Breakers at Bayport propetty located at 459 Neptune Gardens Avenue. This loan was
assigned to the Breakers at Bayport LP on October 14, 2004. This loan accrues no
interest. Payments shall be deferred until January 5, 2059. The outstanding balance on
the note at June 30, 2018, was §1,408,790.

Effective March 9, 2007, Tartiko L. Taplin and Anthony Taplin entered into a
promissory note with the City (and therefore the Successor Agency per ROPS) for
$23,600 for the property at 338 Ansel Avenue. A balloon payment is due on March 9,
2021. If the principal amount is paid after March 9, 2011, the borrower must also pay a
share of the appreciation of the property, as calculated in the note. The outstanding
balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was $23,600.
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Effective December 18, 2007, Bud D. and Jennifer S. Nebeker entered into a
promissory note with the City of Alameda (and therefore the Successor Agency per
ROPS) for $31,800 for the property at 2 Bertero Court. A balloon payment is due on
December 18, 2022. If the principal amount is paid after December 19, 2012, the
borrower must also pay a share of the appreciation of the property, as calculated in the
note. The outstanding balance of the note at June 30, 2018, was $31,800.

Effective January 23, 2008, Annalisa Moore entered into a promissory note with the
City (and therefore the Successor Agency per ROPS) for $31,800 for the property at
101 Kingfisher Avenue. A balloon payment is due on January 23, 2023. If the principal
amount is paid after January 23, 2013, the borrower must also pay a share of the
appreciation of the property, as calculated in the note. The outstanding balance on the
note at June 30, 2018, was $31,800.

Effective March 24, 2008, Resources for Community Development entered into a
promissory note with the Community Improvement Commission of the City (and
therefore the Successor Agency per ROPS) for an amount not to exceed $4,000,000 for
the Shinsei Gardens property, located at 401 Willie Stargell Avenue. The loan was
assigned to Shinsei Gardens Apartments LP on March 24, 2008, and was modified on
March 24, 2008, and modified again on May 14, 2010. This loan accrues no interest.
Payments shall be deferred until March 23, 2063. The outstanding balance on the note
at June 30, 2018, was $1,391,739.

Effective September 27, 2011, Alameda Islander LP entered into a promissory note
with the Community Improvement Commission of the City of Alameda (and therefore
the Successor Agency per ROPS) for $8,600,000 for the Park Alameda property located
at 2428 Central Avenue. This loan accrues no interest. Payments shall be deferred until

September 27, 2068. The outstanding balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was
$8.600,000.

Effective January 11, 2013, Jack Capon Villa LP entered into a promissory note with
the Authority for the amount of $225,000 for the Jack Capon Villa property located at
2216 Lincoln Avenue. Interest accrues at 5% per annum. Monthly installments of
$2,386 (principal and interest) are due based on a 10-year amortization schedule. The
entire unpaid principal and interest shall be due and payable on April 1, 2024. The
outstanding balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was $156,743.

Effective January 11, 2013, Jack Capon Villa LP entered into an amended and restated
promissory note with the Authority for an amount not to exceed $1,400,000 for the
Jack Capon Villa property located at 2216 Lincoln Avenue. Simple interest accrues at
3% per annum. Payments shall be deferred until January 17, 2068. The outstanding
balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was $1,400,000.
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Effective January 11, 2013, Jack Capon Villa LP entered into a promissory note with the
Authority for the amount of $200,000 for the Jack Capon Villa property located at 2216
Lincoln Avenue. Simple interest accrues at 3% per annum. Principal and interest shall
be due and payable on January 13, 2070. The outstanding balance on the note at June
30, 2018, was $201,066.

Effective April 16, 2013, Ana M. Rojas entered into a promissory note with the
Authority for the amount of $4,148 for the Regent Street property located at 1129-1131
Regent Street. The loan accrues no interest. The principal is due and payable on
demand, on sale of the property, or when the property is no longer the primary
residence of the borrower. The outstanding balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was

$4,148.

Effective June 10, 2013, Fikre Assefa entered into a promissory note with the Authority
for the amount of §4,148 for the Regent Street property located at 1129-1131 Regent
Street. The loan accrues no interest. The principal is due and payable on demand, on
sale of the property, or when the property is no longer the primary residence of the
borrower. The outstanding balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was $4,148.

Effective August 1, 2013, Nicola Petochis entered into a promissory note with the
Authority for the amount of §7,676, for the Regent Street property located at 1129-
1131 Regent Street. The loan accrues no interest. The principal is due and payable on
demand, on sale of the propetty, ot when the property is no longer the primary
residence of the borrower. The outstanding balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was
$7,676.

Effective February 10, 2016, Island City Development entered into a promissoty note
with the Authority for the amount of $1,000,000 for the Rosefield project, located on
the 700 block of Buena Vista Avenue. The note accrues simple interest at 3% per
annum beginning January 1, 2018. The principal and interest are due and payable on
December 31, 2073. The outstanding balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was
$1,000,000.

Effective February 10, 2016, Island City Development entered into a promissoty note
with the Authority for the amount of $1,000,000 for the 2437 Eagle project. The note
accrues simple interest at 3% per annum beginning January 1, 2018. The principal and
interest are due and payable on December 31, 2073. The note was paid off during fiscal
year 2018.
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Effective November 24, 2015, Stargell Commons LP entered into a loan agreement
with the Authority for the amount of $2,000,000 for the Stargell Commons property,
located at 2700 Bette Street. The loan bears simple interest at 3% per annum. Annual
payments shall be made equal to the lender's share of residual receipts. The principal
and interest are due and payable on December 2, 2072. The outstanding balance on the
note at June 30, 2018, was $2,000,000.

Effective December 1, 2016, Sherman and Buena Vista LP entered into a loan
agreement with the Authority for the amount of $3,600,000 for the Del Monte Senior
property at 1301 Buena Vista Avenue. The loan bears interest at 2.26% compounded
annually. Annual payments shall be made equal to the lender's share of residual receipts.
The principal and interest are due and payable on December 31, 2073. The outstanding
balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was $3,600,000.

Effective December 1, 2016, Sherman and Buena Vista LP entered into a loan
agreement with the Authority for the amount of $3,410,000 for the Del Monte Senior
property at 1301 Buena Vista Avenue. The loan bears interest at 2.26% compounded
annually. Annual payments shall be made equal to the lender's share of residual receipts.
The principal and interest are due and payable on December 31, 2073. The outstanding
balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was $3,410,000. See related ground lease in Note
10.

Effective April 28, 2017, Island City Development entered into a promissory note with
the Authority for the amount of $250,000. The note accrues simple interest at 3% per
annum beginning July 1, 2017. The principal and interest are due and payable on June
30, 2022. The outstanding balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was $250,000.

Effective June 21, 2017, Everett and Eagle LP entered into a promissory note with the
Authority for the amount of $4,250,000 for the 2437 Eagle Avenue propetrty. The note
accrues interest at 2.68% compounded annually. Annual payments shall be made equal
to the lender's share of residual receipts. The principal and interest ate due and payable
on December 31, 2074. The outstanding balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was
$4.250,000.

Effective October 23, 2017, Island City Development entered into a promissory note
with the Authority for the amount of $300,000 for the North Housing Project. The
note accrues simple interest at 3% annually beginning of January 1, 2022, The entire
amount of outstanding principal and accrued interest are due and payable on December
31, 2074. The outstanding balance on the note at June 30, 2018, was $300,000.

GUARANTEES

Related to the Del Monte Senior property located at 1301 Buena Vista Avenue, the
Authority entered into a guaranty agreement dated December 1, 2016, and attached as
Exhibit E to the amended and restated limited partnership agreement of Sherman and
Buena Vista LP for all of its obligations under that agreement, including partnership
management duties, development completion, operating deficits, tax credit delivery, and
repurchase obligations. The operating deficit guaranty amount is $245,668. The
Authority is released from this operating deficit obligation after two consecutive years
of 1.15 debt service coverage ratio after stabilized occupancy and no sooner than 2020.
As of June 30, 2018, the outstanding guarantee was $917,283.
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GUARANTEES (CONTINUED)

Related to the Del Monte Senior property located at 1301 Buena Vista Avenue, the
Authority entered into an unlimited guaranty agreement with Compass Bank related to
the construction loan agreement and promissory note for $10,322,328, any costs
required to achieve permanent loan closing, and any environmental claims pursuant to
the Environmental Indemnity Agreement. As of June 30, 2018, the outstanding
guarantee was $671,615.

Related to the 2437 Eagle Avenue propetty, the Authority entered into a guaranty
agreement dated June 27, 2017, and attached as Exhibit D to the first amended and
restated limited partnership agreement of Everett and Eagle LP for performance of all
their obligations under that agreement including construction completion, operating
deficits, liquidity, and tax credit delivery. The operating deficit loan guarantee obligation
is up to $314,000. The Authority is released from this operating deficit obligation after
two consecutive years of 1.15 debt service coverage ratio after stabilized occupancy and
no sooner than 2024. As guarantor, the Authority must also maintain liquid assets of at
least $850,000 in aggregate with Island City Development until all obligations are met.

Related to Everett Commons, formetly known as the 2437 Eagle Avenue property, the
Authority entered into a payment and performance guaranty dated June 21, 2017, with
JP Morgan Chase Bank NA related to construction loan in the amount of $9,859,528
which will convert to a permanent loan in the amount of $3,330,168 in 2019.

GROUND LEASES

On December 1, 1998, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with
Regent St. CL.T Condominiums located at 1129-1131 Regent Street. The lease term is
99 years, ending in 2097.

On May 7, 2001, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with Santa Clara
Ave CLT Condominiums located at 2201-2203 Santa Clara Avenue and 1502 Walnut
Street. The lease term is 99 years, ending in 2100.

On March 14, 2003, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with
Resources for Community Development ("RCD"), as amended by the First
Amendment to Ground Lease dated October 14, 2004 for the Breakers at Bayport
development located at 459 Neptune Gardens Avenue. The lease term is 75 years,
ending March 31, 2081. On October 14, 2004, the lease was assigned to Breakers at
Bayport, LP.

On October 4, 2006, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with RCD
for the Shinsei Gardens Apartments, located at 401 Willie Stargell Avenue. The lease
term is 75 years, ending March 31, 2081. On March 24, 2008, the lease was assigned to
Shinsei Gardens Apartments, LP.

On May 25, 2012, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with Housing
Consortium of the East Bay ("HCEB") and Satellite Housing, Inc. for the Jack Capon
Villas, located at 2216 Lincoln Avenue. The rent for the entire lease term, $100, was
prepaid at lease signing. The lease term is 75 years, ending May 25, 2087. In November
2012, the lease was assigned to Jack Capon Villas, LP.

On November 14, 2015, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with
Stargell Commons, LP for the property located at 2700 Bette Street. The lease term 1s

46
Page 56 of 85



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10. GROUND LEASES (CONTINUED)

99 years, ending December 31, 2114. Initial rent of $400,000 plus $1 per vear in prepaid
lease payments for the entire term (§99) was paid on December 2, 2015.

On December 1, 2016, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with
Sherman and Buena Vista, LP, a subsidiary of Island City Development, for the
property located at 1301 Buena Vista Avenue. The lease term is 99 years, ending
December 31, 2115. Unearned rent for the entire lease term of $3,410,000 was received
on December 15, 2016. Uneatned revenue will be amortized over the term of the life.
See related note receivable in Note 8.

On June 1, 2017, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with Everett and
Fagle LP, a subsidiary of Island City Development, for the property located at 2437
Eagle Street. The lease term is 99 years, ending June 1, 2116. Prepaid rent for the entire
lease term of $9,900 was paid on June 29, 2017.

On May 1, 2018, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with AAHC, for
the property known as Anne B. Diament and located at 920 Park Street. The lease
term is 75 years, ending May 1, 2093. Prepaid rent for the entire lease term of $75 was
paid on May 1, 2018.

On May 1, 2018, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with AAHC for
the property known as China Clipper Plaza and located at 460 Buena Vista Avenue.
The lease term is 75 years, ending May 1, 2093. Prepaid rent for the entire lease term
of $75 was paid on May 1, 2018.

On May 1, 2018, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with AAHC, for
the property known as Lincoln Willow Apartments and located at 2101-2103 Lincoln
Avenue. The lease term is 75 years, ending May 1, 2093. Prepaid rent for the entire
lease term of $75 was paid on May 1, 2018.

On May 1, 2018, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with AAHC, for
the property known as Stanford House and located at 1917 Stanford Avenue. The
lease term is 75 years, ending May 1, 2093. Prepaid rent for the entire lease term of $75
was paid on May 1, 2018.

At June 30, 2018, the future rental income required under the lease agreements entered
into by the Authority are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30: Amount

2019 $ 45,324
2020 45,324
2021 45,324
2022 45,324
2023 45,324
Thereatter 4,047,022

$_ 4273642
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NOTE 11.

NOTE 12.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS

Wortkers' Compensation Insurance

The Authority participates in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement ("JPA")
with the California Housing Workers' Compensation Authority ("CHWCA"), CHWCA
is a California joint powers insurance authority established in 1991 for purpose of
providing workers' compensation coverage to California public housing authority
members. CHWCA is a special district in the state of California providing its members
with a comprehensive wotkets' compensation coverage program for the sharing of risk
for self-insured losses, as well as jointly purchasing claims adjusting services, actuarial
services, risk control services, and legal services connected with the program.

CHWCA is governed by a seven-membet executive committee which is elected by the
33-member board of directors. Each of CHWCA's 33-member agencies appoint one
pritary and one alternate member to serve on the board of directors.

The relationship between the Authority and CHWCA is such that CHWCA is not a
component unit of the Authority for financial reporting purposes. Further information
can be found at www.chwca.org.

Property and Liability Insurance

The Authority participates in a joint venture under a JPA with the Housing Authorities
Risk Retention Pool ("HARRP"). HARRP was formed to provide property and liability
insurance coverage for member housing authorities. At December 31, 2017, there were
86 members. The relationship between the Authority and HARRP is such that HARRP
is not a component unit of the Authority for financial reporting purposes. Further
information can be found at www.harrp.com.

ABAG Natural Gas JPA

The Authority participates in a joint venture under a JPA with ABAG POWER, an
association of bay area governments service program. The joint powers agency formed
in collaboration with many Bay Area cities, and special districts. Currently, ABAG
POWER's primary objective is to conduct pooled purchasing of natural gas on behalf
of local governments and special districts who voluntarily join the pool. The program
enables members to achieve pricing suppliers who are interested in larger and more
attractive combined loads. The pool is cutrently in its twentieth year of operation, and is
serving 40 member agencies throughout Pacific Gas and Electric's service tetritory.
There are 66 members in the progtam. Further information can be found at
www.abag.ca.gov/setvices/ power/gas.html

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Federal Grants

The Authority has received funds from vatious federal, state, and local grant programs.
It is possible that at some future date it may be determined that the Authority was not
in compliance with applicable grant requirements. The amount, if any, of expenditures
which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time
although the Authority does not expect such disallowed amounts, if any, to materially
affect the financial statements.
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NOTE 13.

NOTE 14.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement Nos. 74 and 75, the Authority was
required to recognize a prior period adjustment of $1,501, 811 and the OPEB trust was
required to recognize a prior period adjustment of $975,722.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management evaluated all activity of the Authority through the date of March 29,
2019, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and
concluded that the following subsequent events have occurred that would require
disclosure in the notes to the financial statements:

1.

o

(S

The Authority entered into a joint contract of purchase and sale dated March
19, 2018, for the purchase of a below market rate townhouse at 1911 Mulberry
Street, Alameda. This property was purchased on August 17, 2018.

The Authority entered into a joint contract of purchase and sale dated April 4,
2018, tor the purchase of a below market rate townhouse at 2101 Eagle
Avenue, Alameda. This property has not yet been purchased.

Island City Development became sole member of Rosefield LLC as of
October 2018, formed for the purpose of rebuilding and renovating a 53-unit
family property located in Alameda, California.

On October 17, 2018, the board of the Authority increased its loan
commitment to Island City Development from $5,700,000 to $7,000,000 for
the redevelopment of Rosefield Village.

Island City Development executed an amended and restated promissory note
from the Authority for the North Housing Project on October 31, 2018, in the
amount of $3,700,000.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2018

SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
Last 10 Years*

2018 2017 2016 2015

Measurement Date 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2015
Authority's proportion of the net pension liability 0.021448 % 0.019472 % 0.027020 % 0.030130 %
Authority's proportionate share of the net pension $ 2,127,040 S 1,684,952 S 1,854,640 S 1,871,494

liability
Authority's covered-employee payroll $ 3,906,839 S 2752784 S 3,634,051 S 2717587
Authority's proportionate share of the net pension 54.44 % 61.21 % 51.04 % 69.00 %

liability as a pereentage of its covered-employee

payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 75.39 4 88.01 % 107.30 % 83.00 %%

pension liability

*These amounts presented were determined as of June 30. This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information
for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Authority will present information for those years for which

information is available.

Sce independent auditor's report.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2018

SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY'S PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
Last 10 Years®

2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contributions $ 336,127 S5 1322171 S 1,393,004 S 300,316
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined

contribution (336,127) _(1.322.171) _(1.393.004) (505,233)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - S - S - S (204917)
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee

payroll 9.37 % 48.03 % 3833 % 18.66 %o
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee

payroll 9.37 % 48.03 % 38.33 % 18.66 %

“I'hese amounts presented were determined as of June 30. This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10
vears. However, untl a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Authority will present information for those years for which information is available.

See independent auditor's report.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

JUNE 30, 2018

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Last 10 Years*

Total OPEB liability 2018

Service cost b 162,835
Interest 74,812
Differences between expected and actual experience (3.275)
Changes of assumptions (1,482,802)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (30.448)
Net change in total OPEB liability (1,278,878)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 2477261
Total OPEB liability - ending $__1.198383

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer

$ 1,012,388

Net investment income (6,213)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (30,448)
Administrative expense (5)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 975,722

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

Plan fiduciary net position - ending

$___ 975722

Authority's net OPEB liability $____222661
Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 81.42 %
Covered payroll $_ 3.906.839
Authority's net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 5.70 %

*These amounts presented were determined as of June 30. This schedule is presented to
illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend
is compiled, the Authority will present information for those years for which information is
available.

See independent auditot's report.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

JUNE 30, 2018
SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY'S OPEB PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
Last 10 Years*
2018
Actuarially determined contributions $ 128377
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 1.012.388)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $___(884.011)
Authority's covered-employee payroll § 3,906,839
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 2591 %

*These amounts presented were determined as of June 30. This schedule is presented to
illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend
is compiled, the Authority will present information for those years for which information is
available.

See independent auditor's report.
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HOUSING AUTHORI'TY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2018

Actnarial assumptions for valuations performed. The information presented in the required supplementary
schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the dates indicated, which is the most
recent actuarial valuatdon. The actuarial assumptions used are disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements.

Changes of benefit terms:

There were no changes to the benefit terms which impact the measurements provided in the pension

plan.

There were no changes to the benefit terms which impact the measurements provided in the OPEB

plan.
Changes in assumiplions:
There wete no changes in assumptions which impact the measurements provided in the pension plan.

There were no changes in assumptions which impact the measurements provided in the OPEB plan.

See independent auditor's report.
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Housing Authority of the City of Alaimeda
Financial Data Schedule
Entity Wide Balance Sheet
6/30/2018
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Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Financial Data Schedule
Entity Wide Balance Sheet

6/30/2018
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Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Financial Data Schedule
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

6/30/2018
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Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Financial Data Schedule
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

6/30/2018
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Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report
58

Page 68 of 85




Housing Authority of the City of Alameda

Financial Data Schedule

e Revenue and Expense Summary
6/30/2018
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1N COOPERMAN®

Accountants and Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Alameda, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities and the discretely presented component unit of the Housing Authority of the City of
Alameda, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda's basic financial statements
and have issued our report thereon dated March 29, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Housing Authotity
of the City of Alameda's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that have not been identified. We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, that we consider to be a material weakness
(2018-001).

CITRIN COOPERMAN & COMPANY, LLP
2 BETHESDA METRO CENTER, 11ITH FLOOR BETHESDA, MD 20814 | TEL 301.654.9000 | FAX 301.656.3056 C
AN INDEPENDENT FIRM ASS50CIATED WITH MODRE STEFHENS
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Housing Authority of the City of
Alameda's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda's Response to Finding

The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda's response to the finding identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Housing Authority of
the City of Alameda's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bethesda, Maryland
March 29, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR A FEDERAL
PROGRAM, REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE, AND
REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED
BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda

Alameda, California
Repotrt on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda's major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2018. The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda's major federal programs
are identfied in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Housing Authority of the
City of Alameda's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Housing Authority
of the City of Alameda's compliance.

CITRIN COOPERMAN & COMPANY, LLP
2 BETHESDA METRO CENTER, 11TH FLOOR BETHESDA, MD 20814 | TEL 301.654.9000 | FAX 301.656.3056
AN INDEPENDENT FIRM ASSOCIATED WITH MOORE STEPHENS
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda complied, in all material respects, with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intetnal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that 1s less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bethesda, Maryland
March 29, 2019
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018

Pass through
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CEDA Identification Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD):

Direct Programs:

Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation - Single

Room Occupancy 14.249 N/A § 223,023
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 N/A 29,994,186
Family Self-Sufficiency 14.896 N/A 30,035

30,247 244
Pass-through from City of Alameda:
Shelter Plus Care 14.238  CAOD083L9T021609 290346
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 30,537,590
Total Federal Expenditures $.30,537.590

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
04
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2018

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (the "Authority") under programs of
the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2018. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (the "Uniform Guidance"). Because the schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of the Authority, it is not intended to, and does not present the
financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the Authority.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting.

The Authority did not pass-through any federal awards to subrecipients during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018.

The Authority has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

JUNE 30, 2018

Section I: Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report to be issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified?
Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to the financial statements?
Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.516(2)?

Identification of major programs:
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

Dollar threshold to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?

66

Unmodified

Yes
None
reported

No

No
None
reported

Unmodified

No

CFDA 14.871
$ 916,128

No
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2018

Section II: Financial Statement Findings
Finding 2018-001: Internal control over financial reporting (Material Weakness)

Condition and Context: For the year ended June 30, 2018, adjusting journal entries were required to
conform the financial statements to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Effect or Potential Effect: Numerous accounts had incorrect balances prior to the audit.

Cause: The accounting personnel charged with recording the journal entries into the general ledger
were either inexperienced or did not understand the effect of the information they were provided.

Critetia: Several material adjustments were required to cash, capital assets, and net position to conform
the financial statements to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Recommendation: Complex or infrequent journal entries should be reviewed by those with unique
knowledge as part of the review/ monitoring/communication process. It may be necessary for
departments to work with accounting to accomplish this in a complete and timely manner.

Responsible Official’s Response: The accounting staff that did this work are no longer employed
with the Authority. The Authority has hired a controller and is in the process of hiring a new finance
director. The Authority also has the assistance of a fee accountant, the fee accountant intends to
provide guidance and training to the new director of finance. As part of this guidance the fee
accountant intends to implement a Balance Sheet Analysis (BSA) approach to the year-end financial
statement preparation. The BSA approach requires that all fiscal year-end balance sheet accounts have
proper documentation to support the balances reported in the year-end financial statements. This
approach will provide the auditors documentation to support their audit field work and audit
report. Additional automated IT checks in Yardi have been set in place to ensure that journal entries
are approved over certain amounts. The Authority will require the director of finance to approve all
journal entries not created by the director of finance directly and any journal entries prepared by the
director of finance will be provided to the executive director for approval. Co-ordination with other
departments will be strengthened to ensure timely accurate booking of complex transactions.

Section III: Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted.
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: s PHONE  (510) 747-4300
Housing FAX (510) 522-7848

Authority of the City of Alameda TTY/TRS 711

701 Atlantic Avenue » Alameda, California 94501-2161

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
06/30/2018

Finding Number: 2017-001

Finding Summary: Journal entries were not properly recorded, including a material transaction of
land and unearned revenue related to the development activities at the
Authority. The accounting personnel charged with recording the journal
entries into the general ledger either were inexperienced or unable to fully
understand the information they were provided. There were a number of
journal entries recorded, including client accommodation entries. One journal
entry was matetial. The material transaction related to the donation of land and
subsequent issuance of a loan note equal to the prepayment of the lease of land
to Sherman and Buena Vista LP for the same property.

Status: Journal entries that were not propetly recorded were primarily real estate
journal entries relating to the receipt and leasing of land. There were a limited

number of real estate related journal entries in 2017-18. A separate consultant
will review all real estate transactions going forward.
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; {2 PHONE  (510) 747-4300
Housing FAX (510) 522-7848

Authority of the City of Alameda TTY/TRS 711

701 Atlantic Avenue » Alameda, California 94501-2161

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
06/30/2018

Finding 2018-001

Internal Control over Financial Reporting (Material Weakness)

Cottective Action Plan: The Authority has hired a controller and is in the process of
hiring a new finance director. The Authority also has the
assistance of a fee accountant; the fee accountant intends to
provide guidance and training to the new director of finance.
As part of this guidance, the fee accountant intends to
implement a Balance Sheet Analysis (BSA) approach to the
year-end financial statement preparation. The BSA approach
requires that all fiscal year-end balance sheet accounts have
proper documentation to support the balances reported in
the year-end financial statements. This approach will provide
the auditors with documentation to support their audit field
work and audit report. Additional automated IT checks in
Yardi have been set in place to ensure that journal entries are
approved over certain amounts. The Authority will require
the director of finance to approve all journal entries not
created by the director of finance directly and any journal
entries prepared by the director of finance will be provided to
the executive director for approval.

Name of Responsible Person: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director
3

Anticipated Completion Date: June 30, 2019
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ITEM 4C

ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

T Board of Directors

From: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director

Prepared by: Kathleen Mertz, Director of Housing and Community Development
Date: June 19, 2019

Re: Revise the Regular Meeting Schedule

BACKGROUND

At the first meeting of the AAHC Board of Directors, which was held on November 15,
2017, Resolution 2017-01 was passed establishing the business affairs of the
Corporation. In that Resolution, the Corporation adopted a quarterly regular meeting
schedule on the Third Wednesday of the months of February, May, August, and
November. However, it is now proposed that the Corporation hold bi-annual meetings
in the months of March and June, with the Annual being held in June.

DISCUSSION

As a supporting corporation, AAHC is title holding for 4 properties. The Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners are also members of the
AAHC Board of Directors, so they are apprised to the monthly reporting on property
management activities at the Housing Authority meetings. Per the Bylaws, AAHC is
only required to have 2 regular meetings and an annual meeting, per year. In order to
reduce administrative burden, bi-annual regular meetings will be held in March and
June. The annual meeting will also be held in June.

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

RECOMMENDATION

Revise the Regular Meeting Schedule.
Respectfully submitted,

= i

L '
Vanessa M. Cooper t
Executive Director
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ITEM 4D

ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

To: Board of Directors

From: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director

Prepared by: Kathleen Mertz, Director of Housing and Community Development
Date: June 19, 2019

Re: Approve the AAHC One-Year Operating and Capital Budget for

Fiscal Year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

BACKGROUND

Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC) adopts its annual budget in the last
guarter of each fiscal year, along with the annual budget for the Housing Authority of the
City of Alameda (AHA). The AAHC budget only includes the property budgets for the
four properties owned by AAHC — Anne B. Diament, China Clipper, Stanford House,
and Lincoln-Willow Apartments.

DISCUSSION

This year each AHA department Director has reviewed their own budgets, with the
Executive Director and have combined historical budget data with actuals and expected
changes in the coming fiscal year, to establish the FY 2019-2020 budget. The AHA and
AAHC combined budget went to the AHA Board of Commissioners on June 19, 2019 for
approval. A detailed description of the budgeting method and key highlights can be
found in the AHA June 2019 Board packet along with the AHA budget.

The attached table shows the proposed budget for the fiscal year July 1, 2019 to June
30, 2020 for the four properties owned by AAHC — Anne B. Diament, China Clipper,
Stanford House, and Lincoln-Willow Apartments.

FISCAL IMPACT

The operating budget for FY 2019-20 reflects an operating surplus of $504,175 to be
paid to AHA as residual receipts payments for the acquisition loan, per property transfer
documents. No capital expenditures are budgeted for this fiscal year. However, a
feasibility study for the major renovation is planned for China Clipper, to be paid from
predevelopment expenses budgeted by AHA’s Housing and Community Development
department.

& &
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AAHC Board of Directors June 19, 2019
Page 2 of 2

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the AAHC One-Year Operating and Capital Budget for Fiscal Year July 1, 2019
to June 30, 2020.

Respectfully supmitted,

Vanessa M. Cooper /
Executive Director

Exhibit A: Summary of the FY 2019-20 Budget
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Property = affccp affabd afflwa affsta
Budget
Period = Jul 2019-Jun 2020

Book = Accrual

Total
6999990 INCOME
7000000 REVENUE
7020000 TENANT REVENUE
7020110 Vacancy Loss -56,615.00
7030000 Tenant Rental Revenue 475,923.00
7030100 Tenant HAP Subsidy 1,427,757.00
7050000 TOTAL TENANT REVENUE 1,847,065.00
7100000 OTHER INCOME
7110010 Investment Income - Unrestricted 13,608.00
7110011 Interest Income 27,324.00
7110020 Interest on Equip. Reserve 892.00
7110060 Interest - Replacement Reserve 19,104.00
7110075 Laundry Commission 7,428.00
7159000 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 68,356.00
8999000 TOTAL REVENUE 1,915,421.00
9000000 EXPENSES
9000900 OPERATING EXPENSES
9100000 ADMINISTRATIVE
9110010 Administrative Salaries 274,052.00
9110020 Temporary Help - Administrative 47,573.00
9120000 Auditing Fees 5,412.00
9150010 Admin Employee Benefits - Medical/Dental 66,310.00
9150020 Admin Employee Benefits - PERS/PARS 27,737.00
9150030 Admin Employee Benefits - FICA 5,418.00
9150040 Admin Employee Benefits - SUI 722.00
9150060 Admin Employee Benefits - Life/LTD 1,698.00
9150090 Admin Employee Benefit - WC 1,923.00
9160010 Office Supplies/Equipment 8,064.00
9160040 Postage 2,808.00
9160050 Telephone 6,624.00
9160060 Bank Charges and Check Supplies 5,616.00
9160100 Classified Ads and Public Notices/outreach material 1,776.00
9160110 Legal Expense 38,400.00
9160111 Payroll charge 756.00
9160120 Training/Conferences and Travel 11,748.00
9160130 Membership Dues and Fees 1,920.00
9160170 Contracts - Administrative Services/Consultant 15,204.00
9160180 Contracts - Application Service Provider - Yardi 28,260.00

Page 1 of 3
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Property = affccp affabd afflwa affsta
Budget
Period = Jul 2019-Jun 2020

Book = Accrual

Total
9160190 Contracts - Computer/Telephone Maintenance/Email 17,496.00
9160220 Contracts - Human Resource Services 5,868.00
9160230 Contracts - Housing Inspection Services 2,436.00
9160260 Contracts - Office Machine Lease 1,740.00
9160270 Contracts - Web Hosting/Maintenance/Web Ads 2,124.00
9160290 Contracts - HR Recruitment 7,200.00
9169000 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 588,885.00
9200000 TENANT/SOCIAL SERVICES/POLICE
9210030 Police Services 22,956.00
9210100 Tenant/Social Sevices - Salaries 31,066.00
9219000 TOTAL TENANT/SOCIAL SERVICES/POLICE 54,022.00
9230005 TENANT SERVICES EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND INSURANCE
9230010 Tenant Svcs Employee Benefits - Medical/Dental 10,719.00
9230020 Tenant Svcs Employee Benefits - PERS/PARS 3,154.00
9230030 Tenant Svcs Employee Benefits - FICA 1,398.00
9230040 Tenant Svcs Employee Benefits - SUI 417.00
9230090 Tenant Svcs Employee Benefit - WC 5,196.00
9239000 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND INSURANCE 20,884.00
9240005 TENANT SERVICES
9240020 Tenant Service Activities - Contracts and O/S Services 52,692.00
9249000 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES 52,692.00
9300000 UTILITIES
9310000 Water 31,968.00
9320000 Electricity 43,188.00
9330000 Gas 19,512.00
9380010 Sewer 54,972.00
9380020 Garbage 64,308.00
9399000 TOTAL UTILITIES 213,948.00
9399990 MAINTENANCE
9400000 MAINTENANCE SALARIES
9410010 Maintenance - Salaries 147,216.00
9419000 TOTAL MAINTENANCE SALARIES 147,216.00
9420005 MAINTENANCE MATERIALS
9420010 Maintenance Materials 33,168.00
9420020 Vehicle - gasoline 1,464.00
9429000 TOTAL MAINTENANCE MATERIALS 34,632.00
9429005 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS
9429060 Maintenance Contracts - Floor Covering 8,364.00
9429100 Maintenance Contracts - Services 22,416.00
9430010 Maintenance Contracts - Painting 12,504.00
9430020 Maintenance Contracts - Plumbing 2,064.00
9430030 Maintenance Contracts - Landscape, Pool, Pond Maintenance 19,284.00
9430040 Maintenance Contracts - HYAC Maintenance 17,172.00
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Property = affccp affabd afflwa affsta
Budget
Period = Jul 2019-Jun 2020

Book = Accrual

Total

9430060 Maintenance Contracts - Elevator Maintenance 21,936.00
9430070 Maintenance Contracts - Extermination 9,480.00
9430080 Maintenance Contracts - Electrical Maintenance 360.00
9430090 Maintenance Contracts - Security and Nurse Call Systems 6,780.00
9430110 Maintenance Contracts - Gutter Cleaning Services 1,416.00
9430130 Maintenance Contracts - Other 3,228.00
9430140 Maintenance Contracts - Vehicle Maintenance 1,404.00
9430150 Maintenance Contracts - Janitorial 35,676.00
9439000 TOTAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 162,084.00
9450005 MAINTENANCE EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
9450010 Maint Employee Benefits - Medical/Dental 47,553.00
9450020 Maint Employee Benefits - PERS/PARS 14,606.00
9450030 Maint Employee Benefits - FICA 2,085.00
9450040 Maint Employee Benefits - SUI 533.00
9450050 Maint Employee Benefits - Life/LTD 1,251.00
9450070 Maint Employee Benefits - Uniforms/Shoes 5,000.00
9450091 Maint Employee Benefit - WC 6,635.00
9459000 TOTAL MAINTENANCE EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 77,663.00
9499000 TOTAL MAINTENANCE 421,595.00
9500000 GENERAL EXPENSES
9500100 Interest Expense 29,004.00
9610020 Insurance - Liability 7,008.00
9610030 Insurance - Property 21,180.00
9610040 Insurance - Vehicle 2,028.00
9698000 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 59,220.00
9699000 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,411,246.00

NET CASH FLOW 504,175.00
9740000 Depreciation Expense 235,656.00
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